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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
July 24, 2003 
 
 
The Honorable Members of the City Council of 
  the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania 
 

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of 
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania (the 
“City”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 which collectively comprise 
the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the City of Scranton management.  Our 
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  
We did not audit the financial statements of the Sewer Authority of the City of 
Scranton, Pennsylvania (the "Sewer Authority") which statements reflect total assets 
of $34,107,430 at March 31, 2003 and total revenues of $7,710,055 for the year then 
ended; the Parking Authority of the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania (the "Parking 
Authority") which statements reflect total assets of $10,366,122 at December 31 2003 
and total revenues of $1,516,923 for the year then ended; and the Redevelopment 
Authority of the City of Scranton (the "Redevelopment Authority") which statements 
reflect total assets of $3,990,038 at December 31, 2003 and total revenues of 
$4,308,932 for the year then ended.  Those financial statements were audited by 
other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it 
relates to the amounts included for the Sewer Authority and Parking Authority 
reflected in the City's Enterprise Funds and Redevelopment Authority reflected in the 
City's Aggregate Remaining Fund information, is based on the reports of the other 
auditors. 

 
 We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial 
statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation.  We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
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The City has determined its actuarial liability for its internal service workmen's 

compensation fund included in the aggregate remaining fund information at August 31, 
2003 instead of December 31, 2003 as was the past practice. Accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require that liabilities be valued as of 
the report date.  The amount by which this departure would affect the liabilities, fund 
balance, and expenditures of the aggregate remaining fund information is not reasonably 
determinable. 

 
In our opinion, except for the effects, if any, of not valuing its actuarial liability as of 

December 31, 2003 in the aggregate remaining fund information as described in the 
preceding paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respective financial position of the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Scranton as of December 31, 2003, and the respective changes 
in financial position thereof for the year ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 
In addition, in our opinion, financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 

all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, 
business-type activities, general fund, special revenue fund OECD, capital projects fund, 
sewer authority and municipal parking authority of the City of Scranton as of December 
31, 2003, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where 
applicable, thereof for the year ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 

As described in Note 1 the City has implemented a new financial reporting model, 
as required by the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and 
Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments, as of 
December 31, 2003. 

 
The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information 

on pages 7 through 16 and 67 through 68 are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board.  We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted 
principally of inquires of management regarding the methods of measurement and 
presentation of the required supplementary information.  However, we did not audit the 
information and express no opinion on it.  

 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of opinions on the financial statements 

that collectively comprise the City of Scranton's basic financial statements.  The 
introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements.  The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management 
and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City 
of Scranton.  The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the 
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schedule of expenditures of federal awards have been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole.  The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and accordingly, we express no 
opinion on them. 
 
 In Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have issued a report 
dated July 24, 2004 on our consideration of the City of Scranton's internal control over 
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with 
this report in considering the results of our audit. 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 
 
As management of the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania, we offer readers of 
the City’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the 
financial activities of the City of Scranton for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2003.  We encourage readers to review the information 
presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have 
furnished in the City’s financial statements, which follow this narrative.  
 
Financial Highlights 
 

• The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal 
year by $14,506,512 (net assets).   

• The government’s total net assets decreased by $18,671,955. 
• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s Governmental 

Funds reported combined ending fund balances of $30,254,151, an 
increase of $3,160,184 in comparison with the prior year.  
Approximately 15.76% of this total amount or $4,769,137 is available 
for spending at the government’s discretion (unreserved fund 
balance).   

• At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for 
the General Fund was $3,653,476, or 7.95% of total General Fund 
expenditures for the fiscal year.  

• The City’s total debt increased by $49,196,870 (110.59%) during the 
current fiscal year.  The key factor in this increase was the issuance 
of the 2003 series A-D Bonds. These were used in part to refinance 
old debt. They were also used to finance the previously unfunded 
liabilities of the City’s Pension and Workers Compensation funds. 
Lastly a portion of the bonds will be used for new capital projects. 

• The City of Scranton has a BBB bond rating from Standard and 
Poor’s.   

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the 
City’s basic financial statements.  The City’s basic financial statements 
consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) 
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements (see 
Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two different views of the 
City through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial 
statements.  In addition to the basic financial statements, this report 
contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader’s 
understanding of the financial condition of the City of Scranton.  
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Required Components of Annual Financial Report 

Figure 1 
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The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes.  The notes to the 
financial statements explain in detail some of the data contained in those 
statements.  After the notes, supplemental information is provided to show 
details about the City’s individual funds.  Budgetary information required by the 
General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.  
 
Government-wide Financial Statements  
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader 
with a broad overview of the City’s finances, similar in format to a financial 
statement of a private-sector business.  The government-wide statements 
provide short and long-term information about the City’s financial status as a 
whole.  
 
The statement of net assets presents the City’s assets and liabilities as of the end 
of the recent fiscal year. The statement of activities shows the City’s current 
year’s revenue and expenses as soon as the changes occur, regardless of the 
timing of the related cash flows (on the accrual basis). Thus, revenue and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will provide cash 
flow or use cash flow in a future period. An example of a cash inflow in a future 
year would be when a taxpayer pays a prior year tax or fee in the future (see 
Taxes and Fees Receivable $16,851,568). An example of a cash outflow in a 
future year would be the payment of prior year earned vacation pay (see 
Compensated Absences $2,051,551). All major corporations use the accrual 
basis of accounting.   
 
The government-wide financial statements include not only the City’s financial 
information (Governmental Activities), but also the financial information of the 
Sewer Authority, Municipal Parking Authority and the Municipal Recreation 
Authority (Business-Type Activities). Financial information for these entities is 
reported in separate columns.  
 
The government-wide financial statements are on pages 17 through 19. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The 
City uses fund accounting so that its financial activities can be compared with 
other cities and governmental entities that use fund accounting. Fund 
accounting is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). All of the funds of the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania can be divided into 
two categories:  governmental funds and proprietary (fiduciary) funds. 
 
Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are used to account for those 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements.  Most of the City’s basic services are accounted for in governmental 
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funds.  These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow 
in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for 
spending in the next year. 
 
Because the focus of the governmental funds financial statements is narrower 
than that of the government wide financial statements, they are useful for 
comparing the information for governmental entities with similar information. By 
doing this readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City’s 
near term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and 
the governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures and changes in 
fund balances provide a reconciliation to assist in this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The City of Scranton maintains individual government funds. Information in the 
governmental funds includes a balance sheet and a statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, OECD, and 
the Capital Projects Funds, all of which are considered to be major funds. The 
data for non major funds consisting of a) Special Cities Fund, b) Liquid Fuels Fund 
c) Redevelopment Authority and d) Debt service Fund are combined in a single 
accounting.  
 
Fiduciary Funds – Fiduciary funds are not accounted for in the government wide 
financial statements, because the resources of these funds are not available to 
support the City’s own programs. These funds are custodial in nature 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes provide additional information that 
is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide 
and fund financial statements.  The notes to the financial statements are on 
pages 33 through 66 of this report.  
 
Other Information – This report includes certain other required supplementary 
information concerning the City, (see pages 67 through 88). A description of the 
schedules and reports can be found on pages 2 and 3 of the Table of Contents.  
 
Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 
This is the first year the City has presented its financial statements in the format 
required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 
(GASB 34). The City is just one of the many other units of government across the 
United States using this format for the first time.  Prior to this year, the City 
maintained their governmental and proprietary fund groups as two separate 
and very distinct types of accounting without any type of consolidated 
statement that accurately reflected the operations and net assets of the 
government as a whole.  There was a total column that appeared on the 
financial statements, but it was a memorandum total only.  No attempt was 
made to adjust the statements in such a way that the total column would 
represent the overall financial condition of the City of Scranton. These 
statements were basically the equivalent of the fund financial statements that 
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appear in this report with fiduciary funds and two account groups, the long-term 
debt and the general fixed assets, added in. 
 
Because this reporting format is so different from the previous format, 
comparative data for all facets of this report are not available.  In areas where 
comparative numbers were attainable, they have been shown, such as with net 
assets.  Future years’ reports will have more comparative data that will allow 
more opportunities for comparative analysis.  
 
 
The City of Scranton, Pennsylvania’s Net Assets 
Figure 2 
 
    
 Summary of Statement of Net Assets 
 December 31, 2003  

 Governmental
Business-

Type Total 
 Activities Activities  

Current Assets 111,700,899 
 

7,264,516 
 

118,965,415 

Restricted Assets          279,551 
 

3,014,618 
 

3,294,169 

Capital Assets     17,434,834 
 

36,121,924 
 

53,556,758 

Deferred Charges       2,096,153 
 

891,702 
 

2,987,855 
 

Total Assets   131,511,437 
 

47,292,760 
 

178,804,197 
 
 

Current Liabilities     11,171,993 
 

8,563,766 
 

19,735,759 

Non Current Liabilities   137,518,740 
 

7,043,186 
 

144,561,926 
 

Total Liabilities   148,690,733 
 

15,606,952 
 

164,297,685 
 
Net Assets: 
Invested in Capital Assets,   

net of related debt     10,434,834 
 

22,485,952 
 

32,920,786 

Restricted     10,385,014 
 

1,802,392 
 

12,187,406 

Unrestricted 
 

(37,999,144)
 

7,397,464 
 

(30,601,680)
    

Total Net Assets 
 

(17,179,296)
 

31,685,808 
 

14,506,512 
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Net assets serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial 
condition.  The assets of the City exceeded liabilities by $14,506,512 as of 
December 31, 2003. Approximately 30% (29.95%) or $53,556,758 of the assets are 
capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related 
debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items.  The City of 
Scranton uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens. 
 

City of Scranton, Pennsylvania Changes in Net Assets 
Figure 3 

 City of Scranton, Pennsylvania Changes in Net Assets 
 December 31, 2003   
 Governmental Business-Type Total  
 Activities Activities   
Revenues     

Program Revenues     
Fees, Fines and Charges for Services       8,485,539       9,226,978     17,712,517 

Operating Grants and Contributions     17,211,148                    -     17,211,148 
Capital Grants and Contributions       1,095,649                    -       1,095,649 

                   - 
General Revenues

Property taxes     12,799,564     12,799,564 
Act 511 Taxes     22,687,171     22,687,171 

Grants, Subsidies &       1,267,672       1,267,672 
contributions unrestricted

Cable Television Franchise Revenue          723,966          723,966 
Payments in Lieu of Taxes          238,957          238,957 

Investment Earnings          892,353          176,798       1,069,151 
Sewer Authority Concessions Fee          500,000          500,000 

Gain (Loss) Sale/Retirement       2,126,177       2,126,177 
of Capital Assets

Miscellaneous          890,033           37,385          927,418 
Rents & Concessions             7,217             7,217 

Grant Funds Loaned to Qualified 
Parties          900,000          900,000 

Transfers             8,703           20,251           28,954 

Total Revenue and Transfers     67,707,972     11,587,589     79,295,561 

Expenses
General Government and 

Administration       9,244,072       9,244,072 
Public Safety     31,975,044     31,975,044 
Public Works       9,968,640       9,968,640 

Health and Welfare       1,150,321       1,150,321 
Community Development     12,800,331     12,800,331 

Cultural and Recreation       1,290,668       1,290,668 
Other Expenditure          429,715          429,715 
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Pension Trust Funding        9,922,374       9,922,374  
Pension Trust Management Fee 
Buyout       7,327,626       7,327,626  
Unallocated Depreciation           20,822           20,822  
Interest on Long Term Debt       2,320,262       2,320,262  
Sewer Authority       9,663,880       9,663,880  
Municipal Recreation Authority          129,983          129,983  
Municipal Parking Authority       1,723,778       1,723,778  

Total Expenses     86,449,875     11,517,641     97,967,516  
  

Change in Net Assets    (18,741,903)           69,948    (18,671,955)  
  

Net Assets Beginning of Year       1,562,607     31,615,860     33,178,467  
  

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR    (17,179,296)     31,685,808     14,506,512  
 
Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the City’s net 
assets by $18,741,903. The City’s single greatest source of revenue is its Act 511 
taxes. Act 511 taxes consist of the City’s Wage Tax, Mercantile Tax and 
Occupational Privilege Tax.    The City’s Wage Tax is 2.4%.  It is commonly 
incorrectly stated that the rate is 3.4%. The confusion is caused by the fact that 
the City’s Wage Tax of 2.4% is collected along with the Scranton School 
District’s 1% Wage Tax. The taxpayers make a single payment to the Scranton 
Collector of Taxes.  The same collection system is used for the City and School 
Mercantile and Business Privilege Tax and thus the same type of confusion 
exists. The City’s Mercantile and Business Privilege Tax rate is a flat .1% (.001) no 
matter what kind of business. The School District has three different rates. The 
wholesale business rate is .0452% (.00452), the retail rate is .0679% (.000679) and 
the service business rate is .513% (.00513) or more than five times the City rate.   
 
Business-type activities:  Business-type activities increased the City’s assets by 
$68,948.  
The largest item contributing to this increase was the $2,126,177 realized on the 
sale of the Scranton Municipal Golf course. 

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds 
 
Governmental Funds  The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide 
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources.  
Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements.  
Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a 
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal 
year.   
 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City.  The General Fund 
total revenues were up $948,437 from the prior year.  Total General Fund 
Revenue was $48,899,894 for the year 2003 versus $47,951,457 for the year 
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2002.  The General Fund expenditures for the year 2003 went down by 
$525,633.   Total General Fund Expenditures were $45,938,085 for 2003 versus 
$46,463,718 in 2002. The single largest decrease in expenses was in Public 
Safety $1,871,210. Total Public Safety Expenditures were $24,941,667 for 2003 
versus $26,812,877.  
 
At December 31, 2003, the Governmental Funds of the City of Scranton 
reported a combined fund balance of $30,254,151, an 11.7% percent increase 
over last year.  Included in this change in fund balance are increases in fund 
balance in both the General and Capital Projects Funds.  
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
Revenues were greater than the budgeted amounts. Tax collections were 
greater than expected. Intergovernmental revenue was higher by more than 
$350,000. The primary reason was that the expected reimbursement from the 
State was $2.2 million. The actual amount received was $2.7 million. 
Departmental earnings were over $300,000 more than budgeted. The primary 
increase was in money the City received from the utility companies for pave 
cuts. The City budgeted $174,465; it received $401,347. There was 
approximately $683,000 of revenue that was not budgeted. This amount is 
shown as “Other Revenue.” It was unrestricted capital funds from the $7.5 
million bond that was obtained primarily to purchase streetlights. 
 
Expenditures were higher than budgeted. Within the governmental 
expenditures Workers’ Compensation claims were budgeted in excess of the 
budgeted amount by approximately $3,400,000. However, this was offset by 
the fact that in 2003 the City budgeted Workers’ Compensation under 
Operating Transfers to other Funds and not the General Government as in prior 
years in order to more accurately track these expenditures.  In Public Safety 
expenditures, salaries were approximately $273,759 lower than budgeted; 
employee benefits were approximately $789,000 higher than budgeted.  
 
Capital Assets 
 
The City’s capital assets consist of land and land improvements, building & 
building improvements, infrastructure (roads, sewers etc.), furniture & 
equipment, vehicles and construction in progress. Also see Footnote numbers 
5, 6 and 7 for additional information. 
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Figure 4 
 Capital  Assets (net of depreciation) 
 December 31, 2003  

 
Government

al 
Business-

Type Total 
 Activities Activities  
    

Land & Land Improvements       4,846,200  
  

1,307,338  
  

6,153,538  

Building & Building Improvements       4,696,193  
  

83,047,851  
  

87,744,044  

Infrastructure       1,368,400   
  

1,368,400  

Furniture & Equipment       2,084,597  
  

7,098,721  
  

9,183,318  

Vehicles       8,446,501   
  

8,446,501  

Construction in Progress       4,277,859  
  

5,954,685  
  

10,232,544  

Accumulated Depreciation 
  

(8,284,916) 
  

(61,286,671) 
  

(69,571,587) 
    

     17,434,834  
  

36,121,924  
  

53,556,758  

City of Scranton, Pennsylvania’s Outstanding Debt 

General Obligation and Revenue Bonds 
 

Figure 4 
 
 Long Term Debt  
 December 31, 2003  

 Governmental
Business-

Type Total 
 Activities Activities  
    

Balance January 1, 2003     35,792,205 
 

8,695,000 
  

44,487,205  

Debt issued in 2003     71,785,057 
 

4,983,107 
  

76,768,164  

Accretion & Amortization             8,790 
  

8,790  

Less: Retirements 
 

(26,600,003)
 

(980,000)
  

(27,580,003) 

Balance December 31, 2003     80,986,049 
 

12,698,107 
  

93,684,156  
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The City of Scranton, Pennsylvania has a BBB bond rating from Standard and 
Poor’s. 
 
Pension Trust Fund 
 
The City sponsors and administers three pension plans. The plans have been 
designated as severely distressed under Pennsylvania Act 205. 
 
Internal Service Workmen’s Compensation 
 
The independent auditors qualified their opinion on the City’s Aggregate 
Remains Fund information. In a letter dated June 24, 2004 the firm that 
prepared the August 31, 2003 valuation for the City’s Workmen’s 
Compensation Fund, addressed the auditors’ concerns. The letter states in part 
that “... the valuation preformed as of August 31, 2003 was still a reasonable 
projection for the December 31, 2003 financial statements. This was due to the 
fact that the August 31, 2003 valuation included an expected ultimate loss 
level for the full 2003 program year (not just 8 months) and the actual paid 
losses as of December 31,2003 were within 1% of the anticipated loss that one 
would have expected based upon the projected payout patterns underlying 
the August 31, 2003 valuation. Coupled with reasonable growth within the 
reported incurred levels as of December 31, 2003, my opinion was based upon 
a general reasonability check.” 
 
Distressed Municipality Status 
 
Since 1992, the City has been declared a distressed municipality by the 
Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development. Over 
the past two years the City has made significant progress in working to have 
this label removed. The fact that City has obtained a BBB rating from Standard 
& Poor’s in 2003 is a sign that the City is truly on it’s way to sound fiscal 
management. There are many new business projects that the City is involved 
with in downtown Scranton. The City’s Park System has also been revitalized.  
 
Requests for Information 
 
This report is designed to provide an overview of the City’s finances for those 
with an interest in this area.  Questions concerning any of the information 
found in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to 
Leonard Kresefski, Business Administrator, 340 N. Washington Avenue, Scranton, 
PA 18503.  
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GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL

ASSETS

Cash and  Cash Equiva lents 20,137,670$       1,108,736$        21,246,406$   
Certific a te of Deposit 0                        4,337,594         4,337,594      
Investments 33,854,227        0                      33,854,227    
Rec eivab les:
   Taxes and  Fees Rec eivab le, Net 16,851,568        0                      16,851,568    
   Ac c ounts Rec eivab le, Net 187,175             1,553,000         1,740,175      
   Ac c rued  Interest 185,910             26,947              212,857         
   Loans Rec eivab le 34,516,866        0                      34,516,866    
   Other Rec eivab les, Net 1,514,506          0                      1,514,506      
Due From Other Funds 3,207,988          28,601              3,236,589      
Due From Other Governments 639,214             0                      639,214         
Prepa id  Assets 0                        44,694              44,694           
Other Assets 605,775             164,944            770,719         
Restric ted  Assets:

Restric ted  Cash and  Cash Equiva lents 172,000             805,884            977,884         
Restric ted  Certific a te of Deposit 0                        1,802,392         1,802,392      
Restric ted  Ac c ounts Rec eivab le 0                        405,983            405,983         
Restric ted  Interest Rec eivab le 0                        359                   359                

   Property Held  for Resa le 107,551             0                      107,551         
Cap ita l Assets:

Land  & Land  Improvements 4,846,200          1,307,338         6,153,538      
Build ings & Build ing Improvements 4,696,193          83,047,851      87,744,044    
Infrastruc ture 1,368,400          0                      1,368,400      
Furniture & Equipment 2,084,597          7,098,721         9,183,318      
Vehic les 8,446,501          8,446,501      
Construc tion In Progress 4,277,859          5,954,685         10,232,544    
Ac c umula ted  Deprec ia tion (8,284,916)         (61,286,671)    (69,571,587)  

Deferred  Charges, Net 2,096,153          891,702            2,987,855      

TOTAL ASSETS 131,511,437$     47,292,760$     178,804,197$ 

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2003

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
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GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL

LIABILITIES

Short Term Debt 0$                       937,865$           937,865$       
Ac c ounts Payab le 3,523,746          1,464,572         4,988,318     
Ac c rued  Liab ilities 1,082,929          249,668            1,332,597     
Ac c rued  Interest 1,042,154          0                      1,042,154     
Due to Other Funds 3,236,589          0                      3,236,589     
Current Liab ilities Payab le From Restric ted  Assets:
  Revenue Bonds Payab le 0                        5,760,000         5,760,000     
  Genera l Ob liga tion Bonds Payab le 2,065,000          0                      2,065,000     
  Governmenta l Notes Payab le 221,575             0                      221,575        
  Ac c rued  Revenue Bond  Interest Payab le 0                        151,661            151,661        
Nonc urrent Liab ilities
Workers' Compensation Cla ims 

Payab le 18,335,089        0                      18,335,089   
Deferred  Revenues 42,376,681        0                      42,376,681   
Long-Term Debt Ob liga tions 78,560,233        6,938,107         85,498,340   
Deferred  Loss On Early retirement Of Debt (3,943,974)         (3,943,974)    
Long-Term Liab ilities Payab le 0                        105,079            105,079        
Cap ita lized  Lease Debt 139,160             0                      139,160        
Compensa ted  Absenc es 2,051,551          0                      2,051,551     

TOTAL LIABILITIES 148,690,733$     15,606,952$     164,297,685$

NET ASSETS

Investment in Cap ita l Assets, net of
rela ted  Debt 10,434,834$       22,485,952$     32,920,786$  

Restric ted  for:
Debt Servic e 2,403,432          0                      2,403,432     
Reserved  for Cap ita l Pro jec ts 7,981,582          0                      7,981,582     
Reserved  for Retirement of 
   Long-Term Ob liga tions 0                        1,802,392         1,802,392     

Unreserved  - Undesigna ted (37,999,144)       7,397,464         (30,601,680)  

TOTAL NET ASSETS (17,179,296)$      31,685,808$     14,506,512$  

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2003
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FEES, FINES AND OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS - TYPE

PROGRAM ACTIVITIES EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL

Governmenta l Ac tivities
Genera l Government 

and  Administra tion 9,244,072$          41,000$              321,022$             0$                       (8,882,050)$         0$                       (8,882,050)$        
Pub lic  Sa fety 31,975,044          891,275             2,620,046           0                        (28,463,723)         0                        (28,463,723)       
Pub lic  Works 9,968,640            5,677,006           2,428,667           1,095,649           (767,318)             0                        (767,318)            
Hea lth & Welfa re 1,150,321            676,316             2,260,494           0                        1,786,489            0                        1,786,489           
Community Development 12,800,331          1,165,898           9,576,344           0                        (2,058,089)          0                        (2,058,089)         
Culture and  Rec rea tion 1,290,668            34,044               0                        0                        (1,256,624)          0                        (1,256,624)         
Other Expend iture 429,715               0                        4,575                 0                        (425,140)             0                        (425,140)            
Pension Trust Fund ing 9,922,374            0                        0                        0                        (9,922,374)          0                        (9,922,374)         
Pension Trust Management Fee Buyou 7,327,626            0                        0                        0                        (7,327,626)          0                        (7,327,626)         
Una lloc a ted  Deprec ia tion 20,822                 0                        0                        0                        (20,822)               0                        (20,822)              
Interest on Long Term Debt 2,320,262            0                        0                        0                        (2,320,262)          0                        (2,320,262)         

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 86,449,875$        8,485,539$           17,211,148$         1,095,649$           (59,657,539)$       0$                        (59,657,539)$       

Business-Type Ac tivities 0$                        0$                       0$                       0$                       0$                       0$                       0$                       
Sewer Authority 9,663,880            7,710,055           0                        0                        0                         (1,953,825)         (1,953,825)         
Munic ipa l Rec rea tion Authority 129,983               0                        0                        0                        0                         (129,983)            (129,983)            
Munic ipa l Parking Authority 1,723,778            1,516,923           0                        0                        0                         (206,855)            (206,855)            

TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 11,517,641$        9,226,978$           0$                        0$                        0$                        (2,290,663)$         (2,290,663)$         

TOTAL GOVERNMENT 97,967,516$        17,712,517$         17,211,148$         1,095,649$           (59,657,539)$       (2,290,663)$         (61,948,202)$       

Genera l Revenues:
Property taxes, levied  for genera l purposes 12,799,564$         0$                       12,799,564$        
Ac t 511 Taxes 22,687,171          0                        22,687,171         
Grants, Subsid ies, and  c ontributions not restric ted 1,267,672            0                        1,267,672           
Cab le Television Franc hise Revenue 723,966              0                        723,966             
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 238,957              0                        238,957             
Investment Earnings 892,353              176,798             1,069,151           
Sewer Authority Conc ession Fee 500,000              0                        500,000             
Ga in (Loss) on sa le/ retirement of c ap ita l assets 0                         2,126,177           2,126,177           
Misc ellaneous 890,033              37,385               927,418             
Rents and  Conc essions 7,217                  0                        7,217                 
Grant Funds Loaned  To Qua lified  Parties 900,000              0                        900,000             
Transfers 8,703                  20,251               28,954               

40,915,636$         2,360,611$           43,276,247$         

(18,741,903)$       69,948$               (18,671,955)$       

1,562,607             31,615,860           33,178,467           

(17,179,296)$       31,685,808$         14,506,512$         

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."

PROGRAM REVENUES
NET (EXPENSES) REVENUE

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Net Assets, Beg inning of Year

Tota l Genera l Revenues and  Transfers

Change in Net Assets
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TOTAL
CAPITAL NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL

GENERAL OECD PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS

Cash and  Cash Equiva lents 1,718,670$   3,657,447$   6,236,092$    7,293,130$    18,905,339$       
Investments 0                  0                 16,421,965 0                    16,421,965        
Taxes and  Fees Rec eivab le, Net 16,851,568   0                 0 0                    16,851,568        
Ac c ounts Rec eivab le, Net 0                  0                 0 187,175         187,175             
Ac c rued  Interest 0                  0                 128,596 0                    128,596             
Loans Rec eivab le 0                  33,616,866  0 900,000         34,516,866        
Other Rec eivab les, Net 675,419        0                 0 839,087         1,514,506          
Due From Other Funds 484,152        1,293,620    1,095,650 0                    2,873,422          
Due From Other Governments 0                  639,214      0 0                    639,214             
Other Assets 0                  605,775      0 0                    605,775             
Property Held  for Resa le 0                  0                 0                   1,257,551      1,257,551          

TOTAL ASSETS 19,729,809$ 39,812,922$ 23,882,303$  10,476,943$  93,901,977$       

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

BALANCE SHEET

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."
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TOTAL
CAPITAL NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL

GENERAL OECD PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

Ac c ounts Payab le 1,137,989$   619,675$      359,917$       1,115,235$    3,232,816$         
Ac c rued  Liab ilities 1,030,185     40,144        0 12,600           1,082,929          
Due to Other Funds 1,082,872     105,598      440,804 1,608,508      3,237,782          
Deferred  Revenues 12,825,287   38,756,839  0                   4,512,173      56,094,299        

TOTAL LIABILITIES 16,076,333$ 39,522,256$ 800,721$       7,248,516$    63,647,826$       

FUND BALANCES

Debt Servic e 0$                0$                0$                  2,403,432$    2,403,432$         
Reserved  for Cap ita l Projec ts 0                  0                 23,081,582 0                    23,081,582        
Unreserved  - Undesigna ted 3,653,476     290,666      0                   824,995         4,769,137          

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 3,653,476$   290,666$      23,081,582 3,228,427$    30,254,151$       

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES 19,729,809$ 39,812,922$ 23,882,303$  10,476,943$  93,901,977$       

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

BALANCE SHEET

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."
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Tota l Fund  Ba lanc e - Tota l Governmenta l Funds 30,254,151$        

Amounts Reported  for Governmenta l Ac tivities in the sta tement
of Net Assets a re Different Bec ause:

Cap ita l assets used  in governmenta l ac tivities a re not financ ia l resourc es and  
  therefore a re not reported  as assets in governmenta l funds. The c ost of the assets 
  is $ 25,719,750. and  the ac c umula ted  deprec ia tion is $ 8,284,916. 17,434,834          

Governmenta l funds report the effec ts of bond  issuanc e c ost when the deb t is
  first issued , whereas these amounts a re deferred  and  amortized  . 2,096,153            

Property taxes rec eivab le will be c ollec ted  but a re not ava ilab le soon enough
  to pay for the c urrent period 's expend itures and  therefore a re deferred  in the fund . 10,254,707          

Refuse fee rec eivab le will be c ollec ted  but a re not ava ilab le soon enough
  to pay for the c urrent period 's expend itures and  therefore a re deferred  in the fund . 2,562,911            

Interna l servic e fund  is used  by management to c harge the c ost of the 
  workmen's c ompensa tion insuranc e fund  to various departments. The net
  revenue of the interna l servic e fund  is reported  with
  governmenta l ac tivities.
  Change in net assets is as fo llows:
          Cash and  c ash equiva lents                              1,232,331$          
          Investments                                                           17,432,262         
          Ac c rued  Interest                                                    57,314                
          Due From Other Funds                                         334,566             
          Restric ted  Cash & Cash Equiva lents                       172,000             
          Ac c ounts Payab le                                                  (289,737)            
          Workers' Compensation Cla ims Payab le        (18,335,089)       
          Inc rease In Net Assets 603,647              

Deferred  loans a re loans made by SRA to qua lified  p rojec ts tha t will be repa id
  in future years but a re not ava ilab le soon enough to pay for the c urrent period 's
  expend itures and  therefore a re deferred  in the funds. 900,000              

Contribution of p roperty from City to  SRA held  for resa le by SRA
  elimina ted  and  resta ted  a t orig ina l c ost and  net book va lue (1,150,000)          

Long-Term liab ilities a re not due and  payab le in the c urrent period  and  
  therefore a re not reported  as liab ilities in the funds. Long-Term liab ilities a t
  year end  c onsist of the fo llowing:
        Genera l ob liga tion bonds payab le (79,293,130)       
        Governmenta l notes payab le (1,553,678)         
        Ac c rued  interest payab le (1,042,154)         
        Cap ita lized  Lease payab le (139,160)            
        Compensated  absenc es (2,051,551)         
        Deferred  loss on ea rly retirement of deb t 3,943,974             
        Inc rease in Long Term Liab ilities (80,135,699)        

Net Assets of Governmenta l Ac tivities (17,179,296)$      

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET TO STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2003
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TOTAL
CAPITAL NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL

GENERAL OECD PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS

Revenues:
Taxes 35,279,532$ 0$                0$                0$                  35,279,532$        
Intergovernmenta l 3,213,479     5,540,237   0                 10,713,055  19,466,771         
Departmenta l Earnings 1,858,669     0                 0                 75,381          1,934,050           
Refuse Disposa l Fee 4,727,136     0                 0                 0                   4,727,136           
Lic enses and  Permits 1,156,079     0                 0                 0                   1,156,079           
Cab le Television Franc hise Revenue 723,966       0                 0                 0                   723,966             
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 238,957       0                 0                 0                   238,957             
Investment Inc ome 122,732       37               469,020      85,288          677,077             
Sewer Authority Conc ession Fee 500,000       0                 0                 0                   500,000             
User Fee 34,044         0                 0                 0                   34,044               
Other Revenues 890,033       0                 0                 954,735        1,844,768           
Rents and  Conc essions 267              0                 0                 6,950            7,217                 
Dona tions 155,000       0                 0                 0                   155,000             
Program Inc ome 0                  1,060,223   0                 0                   1,060,223           

Tota l Revenues 48,899,894$ 6,600,497$  469,020$     11,835,409$ 67,804,820$        

Expend itures:
Current:

Genera l Government 11,226,724$ 0$                0$                774,249$       12,000,973$        
Pub lic  Sa fety 24,941,667   0                 0                 0                   24,941,667         
Pub lic  Works 8,303,742     0                 0                 1,960,170    10,263,912         
Hea lth and  Welfa re 0                  0                 0                 2,439,638    2,439,638           
Community Development 413,666       9,368,880   0                 4,662,373    14,444,919         
Culture and  Rec rea tion 1,052,286     0                 0                 0                   1,052,286           
Other Expend itures 0                  0                 0                 14,335          14,335               

Deb t Servic e
Debt Servic e-Princ ipa l 0                  0                 0                 1,385,979    1,385,979           
Deb t Servic e-Interest 0                  0                 0                 1,316,803    1,316,803           

Cap ita l Outlay 0                  0                 4,936,593   525,025        5,461,618           

Tota l Expend itures 45,938,085$ 9,368,880$  4,936,593$  13,078,572$ 73,322,130$        

Exc ess (Defic ienc y) of Revenues 
   Over Expend itures 2,961,809$   (2,768,383)$ (4,467,573)$ (1,243,163)$  (5,517,310)$        
 

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."  
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TOTAL
CAPITAL NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL

GENERAL OECD PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS

Other Financ ing Sourc es (Uses):
Bond  Proc eeds 31,625,000$ 0$                12,400,000$  0$                 44,025,000$        
Bond  Proc eeds Refund ing Bonds 0                  0                 0                 28,275,000  28,275,000         
Proc eeds From Long Term Debt 0                  0                 0                 636              636                    
Proc eeds From Tax Antic ipa tion Note 7,699,914    0                 0                 0                  7,699,914           
Opera ting Transfers In 1,680,776    0                 1,237,928     3,100,862    6,019,566           
Disposition of Assets Transferred  to SRA 1,150,000    0                 0                 0                  1,150,000           
Transfer of Asset To SRA (1,150,000)  0                 0                 0                  (1,150,000)         
Opera ting Transfers Out (4,177,679)  0                 (1,385,646)   (1,695,624)   (7,258,949)         
Bond  Issuanc e Costs (1,375,000)  0                 (400,000)      (927,083)      (2,702,083)         
Workmen's Compensation Fund ing (13,000,000) 0                 0                 0                  (13,000,000)       
Pension Trust Fund ing (9,922,374)  0                 0                 0                  (9,922,374)         
Pension Trust Management Fee Buyout (7,327,626)  0                 0                 0                  (7,327,626)         
Payment to Refund  bond  esc row agent 0                  0                 0                 (29,305,026) (29,305,026)       
Repayment of Tax Antic ipa tion Note (7,826,564)  0                 0                 0                  (7,826,564)         

Net Other Financ ing Sourc es (Uses) (2,623,553)$ 0$                11,852,282$  (551,235)$     8,677,494$          

Exc ess (Defic ienc y) of Revenues and  Other
Financ ing Sourc es Over Expend itures and  
and  Other Financ ing Uses 338,256$      (2,768,383)$ 7,384,709$    (1,794,398)$  3,160,184$          

Fund  Ba lanc es, Beginning of Year 3,315,220    3,059,049   15,696,873   5,022,825    27,093,967         

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR 3,653,476$   290,666$     23,081,582$  3,228,427$   30,254,151$        

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
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Net Changes in Fund  Ba lanc es - Tota l Governmenta l Funds 3,160,184$         

Amounts Reported  for Governmenta l Ac tivities in the sta tement of
ac tivities a re d ifferent bec ause:

Cap ita l outlays a re reported  in government funds as expend itures.
  However, in the sta tement of ac tivities, the c ost of those assets is 
  a lloc a ted  over their estimated  useful lives as deprec ia tion expense.
  The amount by whic h c ap ita l outlays exc eeds deprec ia tion in the 
  period .

          Cap ita l outlays 10,377,717$       
          Deprec ia tion (826,725)            9,550,992           

Bec ause some property taxes will not be c ollec ted  for severa l months
  a fter the City's year end  they a re not c onsidered  as "ava ilab le"
  revenues in the governmenta l funds. Deferred  tax revenue 
  inc reased  by this amount this year. 207,203              

Bec ause some refuse fees will not be c ollec ted  for severa l months
  a fter the City's year end  they a re not c onsidered  as "ava ilab le"
  revenues in the governmenta l funds. Deferred  refuse fee revenue 
  dec reased  by this amount this year. (7,705)                 

Contribution of p roperty from City to SRA held  for resa le by SRA
  elimina ted  and  resta ted  a t orig ina l c ost and  net book va lue (1,150,000)          

Interna l servic e fund  is used  by management to c harge the c ost of the 
  workmen's c ompensation insuranc e fund  to various departments. The net
  revenue of the interna l servic e fund  is reported  with
  governmenta l ac tivities.
  Change in revenue and  expend itures is as fo llows:

          Investment Inc ome 215,276$             
          Elimina tion of expend iture on genera l fund  and  revenue
            on interna l servic e fund 17,857,402        
          Rec ord ing on expend itures on interna l servic e fund  in 
            governmenta l ac tivities (9,609,827)         8,462,851           

Deferred  loans a re loans made by SRA to qua lified  p rojec ts tha t will be repa id
  in future years but a re not ava ilab le soon enough to pay for the c urrent period 's
  expend itures and  therefore a re deferred  in the funds. 900,000              

In the sta tement of ac tivities c ompensated  absenc es a re measured  by the amounts
  earned  during the year. In governmenta l funds however, expend itures for these
  items are measured  by the amount of financ ia l resourc es used . This amount 
  represents the d ifferenc e between the amount ea rned  versus the amount used . (148,432)             

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
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Issuanc e of long-term debt p rovides c urrent financ ia l resourc es to governmenta l
  funds, while the repayment of the p rinc ipa l of long-term debt c onsumes the
  c urrent financ ia l resourc es of governmenta l funds. Also governmenta l funds 
  reports the effec t of issuanc e c ost, d isc ounts and  simila r items when debt is first
  issued , whereas these amounts a re deferred  and  amortized  in the sta tement 
  of ac tivities. Repayment of bond  princ ipa l is an expend iture in the governmenta l
  funds, but the repayment reduc es long-term liab ilities in the sta tement of 
  net assets. Advanc e refund ing of p rior deb t is an expend iture in the governmenta l
  funds , whereas the d ifferenc e between the c arrying amount and  advanc e
  refund ing is deferred  and  amortized  in the sta tement of net assets. The effec t of
  these transac tions in the sta tement of ac tivities is shown below:

          Issuanc e of Genera l Bond  Ob liga tions (72,300,000)$      
          Issuanc e of Proc eeds Governmenta l Note Payab le (636)                    
          Bond  Disc ount, Net of Amortiza tion 506,870              
          Deferred  Loss on early Retirement of Deb t, net of amortiza tion 3,943,974           
          Repayment of Genera l Bond  Princ ipa l 25,680,000        
          Repayment of Governmenta l Note Payab le 810,979              
          Repayment of Cap ita lized  Lease Princ ipa l 59,024                
          Bond  issuanc e c ost, net of amortiza tion 2,096,153           (39,203,636)        

Interest on Long-term debt in the sta tement of ac tivities d iffers from the amount
  reported  in the governmenta l funds bec ause interest is rec ognized  as an
  expend iture in the funds when it is due and  thus requires the use of c urrent
  financ ia l resourc es. In the sta tement of ac tivities, interest expense is rec ognized  
  as the interest ac c rues, regard less of when it is due. The add itiona l interest
  ac c rued  in the sta tement of ac tivities over the amount due is shown here. (513,360)             

Change in Net Assets of Governmenta l Ac tivities (18,741,903)$      

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL
MUNICIPAL MUNICIPAL ACTIVITIES-

SEWER PARKING RECREATION INTERNAL
AUTHORITY AUTHORITY AUTHORITY TOTAL SERVICE FUNDS

ASSETS

Cash and  Cash Equiva lents 750,113$               317,617$      41,006$           1,108,736$   1,232,331$         
Certific a te of Deposit 1,586,249             0                   2,751,345       4,337,594    0                         
Investments 0                           0                   0                     0                  17,432,262        
Ac c ounts Rec eivab le, Net 1,486,141             66,859          0                     1,553,000    0                         
Ac c rued  Interest 0                           0                   26,947            26,947         57,314                
Due From Other Funds 0                           28,601          0                     28,601         334,566             
Prepa id  Assets 0                           44,694          0                     44,694         0                         
Other Assets 164,916                28                 0                     164,944       0                         
Restric ted  Assets:

Restric ted  Cash and  Cash Equiva lents 0                           805,884        0                     805,884       172,000             
Restric ted  Certific a te of Deposit 1,802,392             0                   0                     1,802,392    0                         
Restric ted  Ac c ounts Rec eivab le 405,983                0                   0                     405,983       0                         
Restric ted  Interest Rec eivab le 0                           359               0                     359              0                         

Cap ita l Assets:
Land 95,000                  903,293        0                     998,293       0                         
Land  Improvements 0                           309,045        0                     309,045       0                         
Build ings and  Improvements 70,936,797           12,111,054    0                     83,047,851  0                         
Equipment 6,840,849             257,872        0                     7,098,721    0                         
Construc tion In Progress 5,921,257             33,428          0                     5,954,685    0                         
Ac c umula ted  Deprec ia tion (56,520,281)          (4,766,390)     0                     (61,286,671) 0                         

Deferred  Charges, Net 637,924                253,778        0                     891,702       0                         

TOTAL ASSETS 34,107,340$          10,366,122$  2,819,298$      47,292,760$ 19,228,473$       

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."

MAJOR FUNDS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2003
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL
MUNICIPAL MUNICIPAL ACTIVITIES-

SEWER PARKING RECREATION INTERNAL
AUTHORITY AUTHORITY AUTHORITY TOTAL SERVICE FUNDS

LIABILITIES

Short-Term Debt 937,865$               0$                 0$                    937,865$      0$                       
Ac c ounts Payab le 1,399,049             65,523          0                     1,464,572    289,737             
Ac c rued  Liab ilities 116,282                133,386        0                     249,668       0                        
Current Liab ilities Payab le From Restric ted  Assets
  Revenue Bonds Payab le 0                           5,760,000     0                     5,760,000    0                        
  Ac c rued  Revenue Bond  Interest Payab le 0                           151,661        0                     151,661       0                        
Nonc urrent Liab ilities
Workers' Compensa tion Cla ims 

Payab le 0                           0                  0                     0                  18,335,089        
Long-Term Debt Ob liga tions 4,983,107             1,955,000     0                     6,938,107    0                        
Long-Term Liab ilities Payab le 105,079                0                  0                     105,079       0                        

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,541,382$            8,065,570$    0$                    15,606,952$ 18,624,826$       

NET ASSETS

Investment in Cap ita l Assets, net of
rela ted  Debt 21,352,650$          1,133,302$    0$                    22,485,952$ 0$                       

Restric ted  for:
Reserved  for Retirement of 

Long-Term Ob liga tions 1,802,392             0                  0                     1,802,392    603,647             
Unreserved  - Undesigna ted 3,410,916             1,167,250     2,819,298       7,397,464    0                        

TOTAL NET ASSETS 26,565,958$          2,300,552$    2,819,298$      31,685,808$ 603,647$            

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
MAJOR FUNDS

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2003
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
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GOVERNMENTAL
MUNICIPAL MUNICIPAL ACTIVITIES-

SEWER PARKING RECREATION INTERNAL
AUTHORITY AUTHORITY AUTHORITY TOTAL SERVICE FUNDS

Opera ting Revenues 7,710,055$   1,516,923$    0$                       9,226,978$          3,609,316$            

Opera ting Expenses:
Workers' Compensa tion Cla ims 0$                0$                 0$                       0$                       9,606,227$            
Sa la ries, Wages, and  Fringe Benefits 0                 397,159        21,997               419,156             0                           
Insuranc e 13,380        160,861        4,716                 178,957             0                           
Deprec ia tion 2,254,247    339,961        13,893               2,608,101           0                           
Other 7,275,864    277,450        25,728               7,579,042           3,600                    

Tota l Opera ting  Expenses 9,543,491$    1,175,431$    66,334$               10,785,256$         9,609,827$             

Inc ome (Loss) from Opera tions (1,833,436)$  341,492$       (66,334)$              (1,558,278)$         (6,000,511)$           

Non opera ting  Revenues (Expenses):
Investment Inc ome 122,345$      9,359$           45,094$              176,798$             215,276$              
Interest Expense (119,175)     (536,958)       (63,649)              (719,782)            0                           
Other 46,798        (9,413)           0                        37,385               0                           
Workmen's Compensation Fund ing 0                 0                  0                        0                        13,000,000           
Ga in on Sa le of Cap ita l Assets 0                 0                  2,126,177           2,126,177           0                           
Amortiza tion of Deferred  Charges (1,214)         (11,389)         0                        (12,603)              0                           

Tota l Non opera ting Revenues (Expenses) 48,754$       (548,401)$      2,107,622$          1,607,975$          13,215,276$          

Transfers In 0$                0$                 20,251$              20,251$              1,248,086$            

Net Transfers In 0$                0$                 20,251$              20,251$              1,248,086$            

Change in Net Assets (1,784,682)$ (206,909)$      2,061,539$          69,948$              8,462,851$            

Net Assets a t Beg inning of Year 28,350,640  2,507,461     757,759             31,615,860         (7,859,204)           

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR 26,565,958$ 2,300,552$    2,819,298$          31,685,808$        603,647$              

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
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GOVERNMENTAL
MUNICIPAL MUNICIPAL ACTIVITIES-

SEWER PARKING RECREATION INTERNAL
AUTHORITY AUTHORITY AUTHORITY TOTAL SERVICE FUNDS

Cash Flows From Opera ting  Ac tivities:
Cash Rec eived  from Customers 7,726,120$  1,841,583$    0$                        9,567,703$           0$                        
Cash Rec eived  from Other Funds for Servic es 0                  0                    0                          0                          3,609,316             
Cash Payments to Vendors (7,314,112)   (1,133,711)     (70,747)                (8,518,570)           (3,323,179)           
Cash Payments to Employees 0                  0                    (20,012)                (20,012)                0                          

Net Cash Provided  by (Used  In) Opera ting  Ac tivities 412,008$     707,872$       (90,759)$              1,029,121$           286,137$              

Cash Flows From Non Cap ita l Financ ing Ac tivities:
Grants 277,762$     0$                  0$                        277,762$              0$                        
Transfers From Other Funds 0                  0                    20,251                 20,251                 14,248,086           
Other Revenue Rec eived 46,798         0                    0                          46,798                 0                          

Net Cash Provided  by Non Cap ita l Financ ing Ac tivities 324,560$     0$                  20,251$               344,811$              14,248,086$         

Cash Flows From Cap ita l and  Rela ted  Financ ing Ac tivities:
Ac quisition of Cap ita l Assets (4,595,915)$ (69,863)$       0$                       (4,665,778)$        0$                       
Proc eeds from Cap ita l Deb t 4,983,107  0                  0                        4,983,107           0                        
Proc eeds from Sa le of Cap ita l Assets 0                0                  3,475,000            3,475,000           0                        
Interest Pa id  on Bonds (87,487)      (541,651)      (63,649)               (692,787)            0                        
Retirement of Bonds (494,275)    (285,000)      (695,000)             (1,474,275)         0                        
Payments on Deferred  Charges 0                (12,012)        0                        (12,012)              0                        

Net Cash Provided  by (Used  In) Cap ita l and  Rela ted  Financ ing A (194,570)$    (908,526)$      2,716,351$           1,613,255$           0$                        

Cash Flow From Investing  Ac tivities:
Purc hase of Investments (1,153,703)$ 0$                  0$                        (1,153,703)$         (23,346,559)$       
Sa le of Investments 0                  0                    0                          0                          8,425,632             
Purc hase of Certific a tes of Deposit 0                0                  (2,751,345)          (2,751,345)         0                        
Interest on Cash and  Investments 126,019       9,781             18,147                 153,947               104,159               

Net Cash Provided  by (Used  In) Investing  Ac tivities (1,027,684)$ 9,781$           (2,733,198)$         (3,751,101)$         (14,816,768)$       

Net Dec rease in Cash and  Cash Equiva lents (485,686)$    (190,873)$      (87,355)$              (763,914)$            (282,545)$            

Cash and  Cash Equiva lents, Beg inning of Year 1,235,799    1,314,374      128,361               2,678,534             1,686,876             

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 750,113$     1,123,501$    41,006$               1,914,620$           1,404,331$           

"See ac c ompanying notes and  ind epend ent aud itors' report."

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
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GOVERNMENTAL
MUNICIPAL MUNICIPAL ACTIVITIES-

SEWER PARKING RECREATION INTERNAL
AUTHORITY AUTHORITY AUTHORITY TOTAL SERVICE FUNDS

Rec onc ilia tion Of Inc ome (Loss) from Opera tions to Net Cash
Provided  by (Used  In) Opera ting  Ac tivities:

Inc ome (Loss) from Opera tions (1,833,436)$ 341,492$       (66,334)$              (1,558,278)$         (6,000,511)$         
Ad justments to Rec onc ile Inc ome (Loss) from Opera tions to

Net Cash Provided  by (Used  In)  Opera ting Ac tivities
Deprec ia tion 2,254,247    339,961         13,893                 2,608,101             0                          
Change in Assets and  Liab ilities:
(Inc rease) Dec rease in:
    Ac c ounts Rec eivab le 16,065         (35,179)          0                          (19,114)                0                          
    Due From Other Funds 0                  0                    0                          0                          280,500               
    Other Assets (13,653)        (12,298)          0                          (25,951)                0                          
Inc rease (Dec rease):
     Ac c ounts Payab le 149,779     31,090         (38,318)              142,551             289,737             
     Ac c rued  Liab ilities (160,994)      42,806           0                          (118,188)              0                          
     Ac c rued  Workers' Compensa tion Cla ims Payab le 0                  0                    0                          0                          5,716,411             

Net Cash Provided  (Used ) by Opera ting  Ac tivities 412,008$     707,872$       (90,759)$              1,029,121$           286,137$              

Rec onc ilia tion of Tota l Cash and  Cash Equiva lents
Current Assets - Cash and  Cash Equiva lents 750,113$     317,617$       41,006$               1,108,736$           1,232,331$           
Restric ted  Assets - Cash and  Cash Equiva lents 0                  805,884         0                          805,884               172,000               

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 750,113$     1,123,501$    41,006$               1,914,620$           1,404,331$           

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

 

31



CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

PENSION TRUST FUND
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Rec eivab les:
Members' Contributions 16,932$              
Pension Reimbursements 17,335                

Tota l Rec eivab les 34,267$      

Investments a t Contrac t Va lue 70,361,114

TOTAL ASSETS 70,395,381$ 

Ac c ounts Payab le 2,048$          

Net Assets Held  In Trust For Pension Benefits 70,393,333$ 

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."  
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CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
 The City complies with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  GAAP 
includes all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
pronouncements. In the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial 
statements for the proprietary funds, Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before 
November 30, 1989, have been applied unless those pronouncements conflict with or 
contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.  The accounting and 
reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies are discussed in 
subsequent subsections of this Note. For the calendar year ended December 31, 2003 
the City implemented the new financial reporting requirements of GASB Statement Nos. 
33 and 34.  As a result, an entirely new financial presentation format has been 
implemented. 
 

Reporting Entity: The City of Scranton, Pennsylvania (the "City") was incorporated 
in 1866 under the provisions of the constitution and general statutes of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The City is a class 2A city, as defined by the state 
statutes. The City operates under a mayor-council form of government and provides the 
following services: public safety, roads, sanitation, health, culture and recreation, and 
general government services. 
 

The City has evaluated its relationship with the following organizations to 
determine if these organizations should be included in the annual government-wide and 
fund-financial statements of the City. 

 
 Sewer Authority of the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania 
 Parking Authority of the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania 
 Scranton Municipal Recreation Authority 
 Redevelopment Authority of the City of Scranton 
 Scranton Housing Authority 
 Scranton School District 
 Scranton Lackawanna Health and Welfare Authority 
 Municipal Industrial Development Authority of Scranton 

Joint Zoo Authority of the City of Scranton and the County of Lackawanna 
Scranton Public Library 
Single Tax Office 

 
As required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 

14, these entities have been placed in one of the following categories: 
 

1) Component Unit - A legally separate organization for which elected officials 
of the City are financially accountable. This type of entity may then be 
reported in one of the two following manners: 
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CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Note 1  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
Discrete presentation - Financial data for the component unit is 
presented in a column separate from that of the City's financial data. 
There is no such presentation included in the City's government wide 
and fund financial statements. 

 
 Blended presentation - Financial data for the component unit is 

presented in the same manner as that of the City's financial data and 
is reported as part of the City's financial operations. 

 
2) Joint Venture - A legal entity or other organization resulting from a 

contractual arrangement that is owned, operated or governed by two or 
more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control, 
in which the participants retain an ongoing financial interest or an ongoing 
financial responsibility. There are no such entities included in the City's 
reporting entity. 

 
3) Related Organization - An organization for which the City is not financially 

accountable even though the City appoints a voting majority of the 
organization's governing board. 

 
The criteria used to determine how these organizations should be categorized in 

the government-wide and fund-financial statements of the City were: a) financial 
interdependency; b) selection of governing authority; c) designation of management; d) 
ability to significantly influence operations; e) accountability for fiscal matters; f) scope of 
public service; and g) special financing relationships. 
 

As a result of applying these criteria, the following organizations have been 
categorized and determined to be and are presented as blended component units for 
the year ended December 31, 2003. 

 
Sewer Authority of the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania:  The Sewer Authority of the City of 
Scranton, Pennsylvania (the "Sewer Authority") owns the sewer system that provides 
waste water treatment services to the City and nearby communities.  The City appoints all 
Sewer Authority members and guarantees its bonded debt and approves all rates.  The 
Sewer Authority reports its financial position and its operating activities on a fiscal year of 
April 1 to March 31.  The amounts included in the accompanying government-wide and 
fund-financial statements for the Sewer Authority reflects its operating results for its fiscal 
year of April 1, 2002 to March 31, 2003. 
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CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
Note 1  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Parking Authority of the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania: The Parking Authority of the City 
of Scranton, Pennsylvania (the "Parking Authority") operates parking facilities within the 
City. The City appoints all Parking Authority members and the City guarantees its bonded 
debt. 
 
Scranton Municipal Recreation Authority:  The Scranton Municipal Recreation Authority 
(the "Recreation' Authority") operated the City's municipal golf course.  The, City appoints 
all Recreation Authority members and guarantees its debt. 
 
Redevelopment Authority of the City of Scranton: The Redevelopment Authority of the 
City of Scranton (the "Redevelopment Authority") operates for the purpose of promoting 
the elimination of blighted areas by declaring acquisition, sound replanning and 
redevelopment of such areas to be for the promotion of health, safety, convenience, and 
welfare for the general public good, through contract with private redevelopers and public 
authorities for redevelopment.  The City appoints all Redevelopment Authority members 
and assigned repayment on seven loans receivable related to Urban Development Action 
Grants, Enterprise Development Zone Grants, and Commercial Industrial Loans toward 
repayment of the Redevelopment Authority's debt and is financially dependent upon the 
city. 
 

To obtain individual financial statements for any of the above-mentioned entities, 
individuals should contact the administrative office of each specific entity. 
 
BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 

Government-wide Financial Statements: The Statement of Net Assets and 
Statement of Activities display information about the reporting government as a whole.  
They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds.  The statements 
distinguish between governmental and business-type activities.  Governmental activities 
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other 
nonexchange revenues.  Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees 
charged to external parties for goods or services. 

 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses 

of a given program are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are 
clearly identifiable with a specific program.  Program revenues include 1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given program and 2) operating or capital grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular program.  Taxes and other items not properly include among program revenues 
are reported instead as general revenues. 
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CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Note 1  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
Fund Financial Statements: Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are 

organized into funds, each of which is considered to be separate accounting entities.  
Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that 
constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditure/expenses.  Funds 
are organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.  An 
emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories.  A 
fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the 
following criteria: 
 

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that 
individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the 
corresponding total for all funds of that category or type; and 

 
b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual 

governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the 
corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined. 

 
The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below: 
 

1) Governmental Fund Types 
 

a) The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City and is 
always classified as a major fund.  It accounts for all revenues and 
expenditures of the City not encompassed within other funds.  All 
general tax revenues and other receipts that are not allocated by law 
or contractual agreement to some other fund are accounted for in the 
fund.  General operating expenditures and the capital improvement 
costs that are not paid through other funds are paid from the General 
Fund. 

 
b) Special Revenue Funds are utilized to account for proceeds of 

specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts or major 
capital projects) used to finance specific activities as required by law 
or administrative regulation.  The following funds included in the 
accompanying government-wide and fund-financial statements are 
accounted for as Special Revenue Funds: Special City, Liquid Fuels, 
Office of Economic and Community Development (OECD), and 
Redevelopment Authority of the City of Scranton. 
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CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Note 1  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Special cities is classified as a non-major fund.  Liquid fuels is 
classified as a non-major fund.  Office of Economic and Community 
Development (OECD) is classified as a major fund.  Redevelopment 
Authority of the City of Scranton is classified as a non-major fund. 

 
c) Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of 

financial resources for the payment of principal, interest, and related 
costs on general long-term debt. The fund balance of the Debt 
Service Fund is reserved to signify the amounts are restricted 
exclusively for Debt Service Expenditure, and is classified as a non-
major fund. 

 
d) Capital Project Fund is used to account for the acquisition or 

construction of capital facilities being financed from general obligation 
bond proceeds, or transfers from other funds and is classified as a 
major fund. 

 
2. Proprietary Fund Types: 

 
a) Internal Service Funds:  The Internal Service Fund is used to account 

for the financing of goods or services provided by one department to 
other departments on a cost reimbursement basis. The City accounts 
for its self-insurance of worker's compensation claims in this fund. 
These are Proprietary Funds reported within governmental activities 
in the government-wide financial statements. 

 
b) Enterprise Funds:  The enterprise Funds are used for activities which 

are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business 
enterprise where the intent of the governing body is that the costs 
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to 
the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges, or where the governing body has 
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses 
incurred, or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public 
policy, management control, accountability or other purposes. These 
funds include the Sewer Authority, Parking Authority, and Recreation 
Authority. 

 
The Sewer Fund is classified as a major fund.  The Parking Authority 
is classified as a major fund.  The Recreation Authority is classified 
as a non-major fund. 
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CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
Note 1  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items.  Operating revenues and expenses generally result from 
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.  Operating expenses from 
the proprietary funds include the cost of personal and contractual services, 
supplies and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses. 

 
3) Fiduciary Fund Type:  Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held 

by the City in a trustee capacity or an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. The Pension 
Trust Funds consist of the Police Pension Fund, Firemen Pension Fund, 
and Nonuniformed Pension Fund. These funds are accounted for within a 
single aggregate fund. 

 
 Management Focus and Basis of Accounting.  The government-wide statements 
report using the economic resource measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting generally including the reclassification or elimination of internal activity 
(between or within funds). Reimbursements are reported as reductions to expenses.  
Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements and financial statements of City 
component units also report using this same focus and basis of accounting although 
internal activity is not eliminated in these statements.  Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows.  Property tax revenues are recognized in the year for which they are 
levied while grants are recognized when grantor eligibility requirements are met. 
 

Pension trust funds recognize employer and participant contributions in the period 
in which contributions are due and the City has made a formal commitment to provide the 
contributions. Retirement benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the term of the plan. 
 

Governmental fund financial statements report using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues 
are recognized when they are both measurable and available. Available means 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities.  
The City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the 
end of the calendar year.  Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is 
incurred except for general obligation bond principal and interest which are reported as 
expenditures in the year due. 
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Note 1  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include:  Act 511 Taxes, property 
taxes, refuse disposal fee, intergovernmental revenues, and investment income.  In 
general, other revenues are recognized when cash is received. 
 

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes 
revenues and expenses related to the primary, continuing operations of the fund.  
Principal operating revenues for proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales or 
services.  Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and 
include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets.  Other revenues and 
expenses are classified as non-operating in the financial statements. 
 

The City reports deferred revenue on its government-wide and fund financial 
balance sheet.  Deferred revenues arise when potential revenues do not meet both the 
"measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred 
revenues also arise when resources are received by the City before it has a legal claim to 
them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurring of qualifying Expenditures.  
In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the City 
has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the 
balance sheet and revenue is recognized. 
 

Budgetary Process:  The City follows these procedures in developing the 
budgetary data reflected in the accompanying financial statements: 

 
The preparation of the annual operating budget begins by September 15 for the 

subsequent budget year. By November 15, the Mayor submits to City Council a proposed 
budget for the General Fund for the fiscal year commencing January 1.  City Council 
publishes, in one or more newspapers of general circulation within the City, a summary of 
the budget and a notice that the budget is available for public inspection.  A public hearing 
takes place by December 1, at which time City Council may adopt the budget with or 
without amendment. In amending the budget, City Council may delete, increase or 
decrease programs or amounts, except for expenditures required by law or for debt 
service. If a change in a program or a budgetary item exceeds 10% of the Mayor's 
proposed budget, another public hearing must take place within 72 hours to justify the 
change. In no case can an amendment increase authorized expenditures to an amount 
greater than total estimated funds available.  City Council must adopt an annual budget 
by December 15.  If City Council fails to adopt a budget by December 15, the Mayor's 
proposed budget becomes the official budget for the City for the ensuing year. 
 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments:  For purposes of the statement of cash 
flows, the Proprietary Fund considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted 
assets) with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased. 
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Note 1  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Investments:  City investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market 
prices. Fair value is the amount at which a financial investment could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties. 
 

Real Estate Taxes: Real Estate Taxes are based upon assessed valuations 
provided by Lackawanna County, the elected tax collector bills and collects real estate 
taxes. The assessed value at January 1, 2003, upon which the 2003 levy was based, 
was approximately $379 million. Delinquent taxes are collected by an outside collection 
agency. The schedule for real estate taxes levied is as follows: 
 

February 1    Original levy date 
February 1 - March 1   2 1/2% discount period 
March 1 - April 30   2% discount period 
May 1 - June 30   Face payment period 
July 1 - January 15   10% penalty period 
January 16    Lien date 
 
In addition, City taxes may be paid in four installments in which the first two 

quarterly payments aggregating 50% of the face amount are due by June 30. The third 
and fourth quarterly payments are due on August 31 and October 31, respectively. Any 
delinquent installment is subject to a penalty of 10%. 
 
 The millage rate at January 1, 2003 was 82.122 mills on the assessed value of 
land and 17.86 mills on the assessed value of improvements. 
 

Real Estate Taxes Receivable: The City utilizes the reserve method for writing 
off uncollectible real estate taxes. 
 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts:  Accounts Receivable included in the Enterprise 
Fund represent amounts outstanding from Sewer Authority customer's reported net of an 
allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,300,000 at December 31, 2003.  The Authority's 
policy for providing for uncollectible accounts is to charge current year earnings for 
accounts receivable considered currently uncollectible, based on the historical collection 
experience of the Sewer Authority and collection percentages applicable to public 
utilities. 

 
A major portion of the allowance for doubtful accounts is felt to be collectible in 

future years because of the Authority's power to convert past due accounts into 
municipal claims. This procedure is an operation of law and the claims have the status of 
a legal lien or judgment. There are currently in force municipal claims of approximately 
two million dollars. 
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Note 1  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
 The Parking Authority utilizes the direct write off method and historically they have 
been immaterial to the financial statements. 
 
 Loans Receivable: Loans receivable consist of economic development loans to 
third parties that are administered by OECD and the Redevelopment Authority.  Most of 
these loans bear interest, usually at a very low rate.  These loans receivable, are reported 
at the gross principal outstanding.  The outstanding loans are considered deferred 
revenue until collection of the principal is received, Interest income is recorded when 
received. 
 

Interfund Receivables and Payables:  During the course of operations, numerous 
transactions occur between individual funds that may result in amounts owed between 
funds. Those related to goods and services type transactions are classified as "due to and 
from other funds". Short-term interfund loans are reported as "interfund receivables and 
payables". Long-term interfund loans (noncurrent portion) are reported as "advances from 
and to other funds". Interfund receivables and payables between funds within 
governmental activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net Assets. 
 

Grant Funds are considered to be earned to the extent of expenditures made 
under the provision of the grant and, accordingly, when' such funds are received they are 
recorded as deferred revenues until earned. 

 
Fixed Assets: The accounting treatment over property, plant, and equipment (fixed 

assets) depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund operations or 
proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund 
financial statements. 
 
Government-wide Statements 
 
 In the government-wide financial statements, fixed assets are accounted for as 
capital assets. All fixed assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if 
actual is unavailable, except for donated fixed assets which are recorded at their 
estimated fair value at the date of donation. Estimated historical cost was used to value 
the majority of the assets acquired prior to December 31, 2002. 
 

Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets is recorded as an expense in the 
Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net 
Assets. Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as 
follows: 
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Note 1  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Sewer Authority     Parking Authority 
   Useful Life              Useful Life       

  
Building and Building Improvements           10-50 years 
Sewer treatment plant        40 years 
Land improvements         10 years         10-15 years 
Operating equipment        10 years           3-10 years 
Vehicles        3- 6 years 
Extraordinary repairs: 

    Sewer system         20 years 
    Equipment            5 years 
 
       Redevelopment   
           Authority  Governmental 
          Useful Life             Funds  
 
 Equipment          15 years 
 Building and Building Improvements           20-50 years 
 Land Improvements              10-15 years 

Operating Equipment             05-07 years 
 Vehicles               08-15 years 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 

In the fund financial statements, fixed assets used in governmental fund 
operations are accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund 
upon acquisition. Fixed assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for the 
same as in the government-wide statements. 
 
Long-term Debt 
 

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are 
used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they 
are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements. 
 

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources 
are reported as liabilities in the government-wide statements.  The long-term debt 
consists primarily of notes payable and accrued compensated absences. 
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Note 1  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund 

financial statements. The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and 
payment of principal and interest reported as expenditures. The accounting for proprietary 
fund is the same in the fund statements as it is in the government-wide statements. 
 

Bond issuance cost in the Government-wide and Proprietary are amortized over 
the terms of the respective bonds using the straight line method.  Bond discounts, 
premium, the reaquistion price, and the net carrying value of refunded debt are 
capitalized and amortized over the terms of the respective bonds using a method that 
approximates the effective interest method. 

 
The Government Fund Financial Statements recognizes the proceeds of debt and 

premiums as other financing sources of the current period.  Issuance costs are reported 
as expenditures. 

 
Government-wide Statements 
 
 Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components: 
 

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt-Consists of capital assets 
including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds or other borrowings that 
are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets. 

 
b. Restricted net assets-Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the 

use either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 

 
c. Unrestricted net assets-all other net assets that do not meet the definition of 

"restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt.". 
 
Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance.  Fund balance is further 

classified as reserved and unreserved, with unreserved further split between designated 
and undesignated.  Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-
wide statements. 

 
 
 
 
 

 43



CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Note 1  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
Use of Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 

generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 
 

Compensated Absences:  The City's vacation policy generally provides that 
unused vacation benefits lapse at year-end.  Unused vacation may be carried over only 
with the approval of the department head.  Unused sick pay accumulates to varying 
maximum amounts for the various classes of City employees.  At December 31, 2003 
aggregate liability for unused vacation and sick pay is $2,051,551. 
 
Note 2  Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments 
 

Pennsylvania Statues provide for investment of governmental funds into certain 
authorized investment types including U. S. Treasury bills, other short-term U.S. and 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania government obligations and insured or collateralized 
time deposits and certificates of deposit.  The statues do not prescribe regulations 
related to demand deposits; however, they do allow the pooling of Governmental Funds 
for investment purposes. 
 

The deposit and investment policy of the City adheres to state statues. Deposits of 
the City are either maintained in demand deposits or invested in certificates of deposit. 
 
 Bank balances of governmental units are categorized to give an indication of the 
level of risk assumed by the entity at year end.  Category 1 includes bank balances that 
are insured or collateralized with securities held by the entity or its agent in the entity’s 
name Category 2 includes bank balances that are collateralized with securities held by 
the pledging financial institutions trust department or agent in the entity’s name.  Category 
3 includes bank balances that are uncollateralized, including any bank balance that is 
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution or by its trust 
department or agent but not in the entity’s name. 
 
 As of December 31, 2003, the aggregate bank balance of bank deposits included 
in cash and cash equivalents was $28,234,588 of which $1,273,290 was insured by the 
FDIC (Category 1).  The remaining bank balance of $26,961,298 was collaterized with 
securities held by the pledging financial institutions, but not necessarily held in the City’s 
name (Category 3).  The carrying amount of these deposits at December 31, 2003 was 
$28,186,831. 
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Note 2  Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 
 
Investments:  The investments of the City at December 31, 2003 have been 

categorized according to the level of risk assumed by the reporting entity. Category 1 
includes investments that are insured, registered, or are held by the City's agent in the 
City's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by the 
counterparty's trust department or agent in the City's name. Category 3 includes 
uninsured 
and unregistered investments held by the counterparty, its trust department or its agent 
but not in the City's name. The City's investments at December 31, 2003 are classified as 
follows: 
 
           Category      Carrying 
                  3         Amount 
 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND: 
 U.S. Government Securities Held by  
    Custodian Under Repurchase Agreement $  7,197,846  $  7,170,860 
  
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

U.S. Government Securities Held  
   In Financial Institution Trust Department   17,432,632    17,432,632
        $24,630,478  $24,603,492 
 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND: 
 Guaranteed Investment Contract      $  3,122,016
 
PENSION TRUST FUNDS: 
Nationwide Insurance Company 
  Assets at Contract Value: 
     Fixed Income         $  2,361,881 
     Deposit Account             8,266,327 
     International Value            3,722,849 
     Diversified Bond Fund          16,848,326 
     Small Cap Value             7,916,130 
     Large Cap Value             6,274,466 
     Small Cap Growth            6,467,539 
     Large Cap Growth          18,503,596
        Total Pension Trust Funds       $70,361,114
 
           TOTAL ALL FUNDS       $98,086,622 
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Note 3  Taxes and Fees Receivable 
 
 Taxes and fees receivable in the General Fund consist of the following at 
December 31, 2003: 
 
 Current real estate taxes        $     220,422 
 Delinquent real estate taxes        12,537,220 
 Act 511 taxes: 
    Earned Income            3,131,982 
    Occupational privilege                38,806 
    Business privilege/mercantile               72,378 
 Delinquent refuse disposal fee          3,360,841
  Total         $19,361,649 
 
 Less allowance for uncollectible taxes and fees       (2,510,081) 
 
  Net         $16,851,568. 
 
 Of the above, the receivables not expected to be collected within one year are 
$10,737,000 delinquent real estate taxes and $1,960,000 delinquent refuse disposal fee. 
 
 
Note 4  Due From and Due to Other Funds 
 
 A summary of the total amounts due from and due to other funds, by fund, at 
December 31, 2003 is as follows: 
 
          Due From      Due To 
        Other Funds  Other Funds
 

General Fund $     645,976 $1,081,679 
Special Revenue Funds, 
   OECD    1,293,620      105,598 
   Special City                   0   1,529,790 
   Redevelopment Authority                   0      240,542 
Internal Source Fund        334,566                  0 
Capital Projects Fund    1,095,650       440,804 
Enterprise Funds, 
   Parking Authority          28,601                  0
         Total $ 3,398,413 $ 3,398,413 
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Note 5 - Capital Assets 
 
 Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2003 was as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities:

Balance at 
January 1, 

2003 Additions Disposals

Balance at 
December 31, 

2003
  Land & Land Improvemnets 1,950,484$   2,895,716$   0$                  4,846,200$    
  Building & Building Improvements 3,996,543    699,650       0                   4,696,193      
  Infrastructure 0                  1,368,400    0                   1,368,400      
  Furniture & Equipment 1,235,986    948,611       100,000       2,084,597      
  Vehicles 6,974,699    1,471,802    0                   8,446,501      
  Construction in Progress 1,284,321    2,993,538    0                   4,277,859      

     Totals at Historical Cost 15,442,033$ 10,377,717$ 100,000$      25,719,750$  

Less: Accumluated Depreciation
  Land & Land Improvemnets 0$                 (26,435)$       0$                  (26,435)$        
  Building & Building Improvements (2,478,820)   (84,785)        0                   (2,563,605)     
  Infrastructure 0                  (45,613)        0                   (45,613)          
  Furniture & Equipment (993,457)      (100,929)      (100,000)      (994,386)        
  Vehicles (4,085,914)   (568,963)      0                   (4,654,877)     

     Total Accumulated Depreciation (7,558,191)$  (826,725)$     (100,000)$     (8,284,916)$   

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net 7,883,842$   9,550,992$   0$                  17,434,834$  

Business - Type Activities:
  Land & Land Improvemnets 1,304,083$   3,255$          0$                  1,307,338$    
  Building & Building Improvements 82,677,111  370,740       0                   83,047,851    
  Furniture & Equipment 7,072,986    25,735         0                   7,098,721      
  Construction in Progress 1,602,195    4,460,971    108,481       5,954,685      

     Totals at Historical Cost 92,656,375$ 4,860,701$   108,481$      97,408,595$  

Less: Accumluated Depreciation
  Land & Land Improvemnets (281,483)$     (6,955)$         0$                  (288,438)$      
  Building & Building Improvements (52,152,078) (2,351,888)   0                   (54,503,966)   
  Furniture & Equipment (6,258,902)   (235,365)      0                   (6,494,267)     

     Total Accumulated Depreciation (58,692,463)$ (2,594,208)$  0$                  (61,286,671)$ 

Business - type Capital Assets, Net 33,963,912$ 2,266,493$   108,481$      36,121,924$  

                                                    Depreciation Expense was charged to Governmental activities as follows:
General 26,386$         
Public Safety 385,200         
Public Works 315,285         
Parks & Recreation 79,032           
Unallocated 20,822           
    Total Depreciation Expense 826,725$        
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Note 6  Short-Term Debt 
 
 The following summarizes the changes in short-term debt of the Enterprise Fund for 
the year ended December 31, 2003: 
 
         Balance          Balance 
        01/01/03     Increases Decreases     12/31/03 
Sewer Authority: 
  Line of Credit   $1,392,950 $            0 $  481,237 $      911,713 
  Demand Note Payable         39,190               0       13,038           26,152
                                           $1,432,140 $            0 $  494,275 $      937,865 
 
 Line of Credit:  In August 2000, the Sewer Authority obtained a $4,000,000 line of 
credit to provide interim financing for a capital improvement program.  Interest is payable 
monthly at a variable rate equal to 70% of the prime rate.  Security for the line of credit is all 
receipts and accounts receivable.  The line of credit matures sixty months after the closing 
date of the long-term financing. 
 
 Demand Note Payable:  The Sewer Authority has a demand note payable secured by 
a vehicle, with interest at 3.15%.  If no demand is made, monthly payments of $1,174, 
including principal and interest, are due until February, 2005. 
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Note 7  Long-Term Debt 
 
 The following summarizes the changes in long-term debt for the year ended 
December 31, 2003: 
 

Balance (Amortization) Balance
01/01/03 Additions Accretion Retirements 12/31/03

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

475,000$       0$                0$                475,000$      0$                  
100,000         0                 0                 100,000       0                   

2,780,000       0                 0                 2,780,000    0                   
22,325,000     0                 0                 22,325,000  0                   

7,500,000       0                 0                 0                  7,500,000     
0                    4,998,294   1,770          0                  5,000,064     
0                    35,553,097 (6,323)         0                  35,546,774   
0                    17,847,650 9,466          0                  17,857,116   
0                    13,385,380 3,796          0                  13,389,176   

Total General Obligation Bonds 33,180,000$   71,784,421$ 8,709$         25,680,000$ 79,293,130$  

Lease Obligations Payable
Total Lease Obligations Payable 198,184$       0$                0$                59,024$        139,160$       

Redevelopment Authority:
Note Payable 2,364,021$     636$            0$                810,979$      1,553,678$    

Debt Service Fund:
50,000$         0$                0$                50,000$        0$                  

35,792,205$   71,785,057$ 8,709$         26,600,003$ 80,985,968$  

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Revenue Bonds:
Major Enterprise Fund:

Parking Authority
1969 Series 1,175,000$     0$                0$                145,000$      1,030,000$    
1995 Series 6,825,000       0                 0                 140,000       6,685,000     
Sewer Authority 0                 
2002 Series 0                    4,388,844   0                 0                  4,388,844     
2002 Series 0                    594,263      0                 0                  594,263        

Total Revenue Bonds 8,000,000$     4,983,107$  0$                285,000$      12,698,107$  

Notes Payable:
Other Enterprise Funds

Recreational Authority 695,000$       0$                0$                695,000$      0$                  

TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 8,695,000$     4,983,107$  0$                980,000$      12,698,107$  

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT 44,487,205$   76,768,164$ 8,709$         27,580,003$ 93,684,075$  

Series B of 2003

Series 2002

General Obligations Bonds:
Series A of 1993

Series A of 2003

DCED Act 47 Loan
Series A of 1997
Series A & C Of 2001
Emmaus General Authority 

DCED Act 47 Loan

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Series C of 2003
Series D of 2003
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Note 7  Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 
 A summary of long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2003 
 
 Series A of 1993: 

General obligation bonds, due in annual principal installments of $405,000 to 
$475,000 through December 2003 plus interest payable semi-annually at 
4.8% to 5.5% 

 
DCED Act 47 Loan: 

Noninterest-bearing loan payable to the Pennsylvania Department of Community 
and Economic Development ("DCED") due in quarterly installments of 
$50,000 with final payment in April 2003 

 
Series A of 1997: 

General obligation bonds, due in annual principal installments of $115,000 to 
$210,000 through November 2013 plus interest payable semi-annually at 4% 
to 5.3%.  The Bonds were advance refunded and called on November 15, 
2003 from the proceeds of the 2003 B series issue. 

 
Series A and C of 2001: 

General obligation bonds, due in annual principal installments of $305,000 to 
$1,695,000 through September 2031 plus interest payable semi-annually at 
4.4% to 7.0%.  The Bonds were advance refunded and proceeds of the 2003 
A & B issue were placed in an irrevocable trust. 

 
 Emmaus General Authority Series 2003: 

Variable rate demand bonds, Series of 1996 of Emmaus General Authority, due 
in annual principal installments of $190,000 to $440,000 commencing August 
2004 through August 2028.  Monthly payments of interest based upon a pro 
rata share of the interest accrued on the variable rate bonds calculated by the 
administrator based on the interest rates determined by the remarketing 
agent for the current month plus interest at the rate estimated by the 
administrator for the remaining portion of the month which has not been 
determined by the Remarketing Agent, plus 55 basis points. 
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Note 7  Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 

General Obligation Bonds, Series A of 2003: 
On August 1, 2003 the City of Scranton in accordance with the local government 

Unit Debt Act of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Act 52, of 1978 issued 
$5,025,000. Of 1.00% to 3.50% General Obligation Bonds, Series A of 2003 
to provide funds to advance refund the City’s General Obligation Bonds, 
Series of 2001 A, capitalize a portion of the interest on the bonds and pay the 
costs and expenses related to issuing and insuring the bonds.  Interest is 
payable on March 1, and September 1, each year with final maturity 
September 1, 2014. The bonds maturing after September 1, 2006 are 
subject to extraordinary mandatory redemption prior to maturity on March 1, 
2006 at the direction of the City at 100% to the extent that there are 
available amounts generated in the preceding fiscal year as determined 
under IRC section 1.148-6(d)(3)(iii) of he 1986 code.  The bonds maturing 
on or after September 1, 2014 are subject to redemption prior to their stated 
dates of maturity at the option of the City on or after September 1, 2013 at a 
redemption price of 100%. 

 
General Obligation Bonds, Series B of 2003: 

On August 1, 2003 the City of Scranton in accordance with the local government 
Unit Debt Act of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Act 52, of 1978 issued 
$35,650,000. Of 1.30% to 4.50% General Obligation Bonds, Series B of 2003 
to provide funds to advance refund the City’s General Obligation Bonds, 
Series of 1997 A, to advance refund the City’s General Obligation Bonds, 
Series of 2001C, to fund various capital projects within the City, capitalize a 
portion of the interest on the bonds and pay the costs and expenses related to 
issuing and insuring the bonds.  Interest is payable on March 1, and 
September 1, each year with final maturity September 1, 2031. The bonds 
maturing on or after September 1, 2014 are subject to redemption prior to 
their stated dates of maturity at the option of the City on or after September 
1, 2013 at a redemption price of 100%. 

 
General Obligation Bonds, Series C of 2003: 

On August 1, 2003 the City of Scranton in accordance with the local government 
Unit Debt Act of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Act 52, of 1978 issued 
$18,145,000. Of 1.40% to 5.60% Federally Taxable General Obligation Bonds 
Pension Funding, Series C of 2003 to pay off pension management 
termination fee, fund the pension actuarial accrued liability, capitalize a portion 
of the interest on the bonds and pay the costs and expenses related to issuing 
and insuring the bonds.  Interest is payable on March 1, and September 1, 
each year with final maturity September 1, 2033. The bonds maturing on or 
after September 1, 2014 are subject to redemption prior to  
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Note 7  Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

 
their stated dates of maturity at the option of the City on or after September 
1, 2013 at a redemption price of 100%. 

 
General Obligation Bonds, Series D of 2003: 

On August 1, 2003 the City of Scranton in accordance with the local government 
Unit Debt Act of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Act 52, of 1978 issued 
$13,480,000. Of 1.40% to 5.50% Federally Taxable General Obligation 
Bonds, Series D of 2003 fund the actuarial accrued workmen’s compensation 
liability, capitalize a portion of the interest on the bonds and pay the costs and 
expenses related to issuing and insuring the bonds.  Interest is payable on 
March 1, and September 1, each year with final maturity September 1, 2023. 
The bonds maturing on or after September 1, 2014 are subject to 
redemption prior to their stated dates of maturity at the option of the City on 
or after September 1, 2013 at a redemption price of 100%. 

 
Redevelopment Authority:   

The Authority has a note payable with a financial institution with maximum 
borrowings of $2,500,000, maturing in December of 2013. The note carries 
an interest rate of 4.39% for the first 60 months, after which time the rate will 
adjust every five years to a rate equal to 51.65 per cent of the New York 
Prime Rate on each adjustment date.  The rate was adjusted in November 
2003 to 2.066%.  The outstanding debt is secured by the assignment of the 
repayments on seven loans held by the City of Scranton related to Urban 
Development Action Grants, Enterprise Development Zone Grants, and City 
of Scranton Commercial Industrial Loans. In addition, the Authority is required 
to maintain a minimum balance in the related bank account in the amount 
equal to the annual debt service on the outstanding principal.  The note is 
payable in monthly installments of $14,000, including principal and interest, 
and an annual principal installment of $84,000.  Total restricted cash at 
December 31, 2003 was $285,462.  The Authority is currently making interest 
only payments on the outstanding balance.  Interest payments in 2003 totaled 
$88,769. 

 
Parking Authority:   

1969 Parking Authority Bonds, due in annual installments through 2009, bearing 
interest rates of 4.75% to 5.85%.  In January 2004, the Authority used a 
portion of the proceeds from the 2004 series bonds to redeem and retire the 
1969 series bonds. 

 
1995 Parking Revenue Bonds, due in annual installments through 2020, bearing 

interest rate of 5.00% to 7.15%.  In January 2004, the Authority used a 
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portion of the proceeds from the 2004 series bonds to advance refund 
$4,590,000 of the outstanding 1995 series bonds. 

 
Sewer Authority 2002 Series:   

The balance outstanding at March 31, 2003 amounted to $4,388,844.  The loan 
is secured by the gross revenues of the Authority and the guarantee of the 
City of Scranton. Interest  only is payable on advances until July 1, 2003, 
when monthly principal and interest payments are due up to and including 
January 2003.  Interest is at 1.522% for the first 75 months and 3.045% 
thereafter.  Legal fees relating to obtaining the financing amounted to 
$44,338 and have been recorded as deferred charges.  Construction was 
completed for this phase in July 2003, but the final inspection has not 
occurred as of the financial statement date.  Therefore, principal payments 
have been deferred by PENNVEST. 

 
Sewer Authority 2002 Series:   

The balance outstanding at March 31, 2003 amounted to $594,263.  The security 
is the same as above.  Interest only is payable on advances until August 1, 
2004, when monthly principal and interest payments are due up to and 
including July 1, 2024.  Interest is at 1.38% for the first 81 months and 2.74% 
thereafter. 

 
The Authority has received a commitment letter for a third loan in the amount of 

$2,874,649 to complete Phase I.  The loan is expected to close October 
2003. 

 
The PENNVEST loans are federally funded and therefore subject to various 

compliance requirements, Refer to loan documents for complete details. 
 

Municipal Recreation Authority:   
5.39% note payable to financial institution due in annual principal installments of 

$105,000 to $130,000 through December 31, 2005 and semi-annual interest 
payments due June and December.  This loan was retired with proceeds from 
the sale of the City's golf course. 

 
The Sewer Authority and Parking Authority have restricted certain cash 

balances, investments, and related accounts for the retirement of long-term 
debt. 
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Future Debt Service Requirements as of December 31, 2003 are as follows: 
 
 

Year Ending 
December 

31, Principal Interest Total

Year Ending 
December 

31, Principal Interest Total

2004 2,065,000$   3,217,499$   5,282,499$    2004 221,575$   30,225$     251,800$    
2005 2,110,000 3,185,601 5,295,601 2005 226,401 25,599 252,000
2006 2,145,000 3,154,232 5,299,232 2006 231,123 20,877 252,000
2007 2,185,000 3,114,438 5,299,438 2007 235,943 16,057 252,000
2008 2,235,000 3,065,227 5,300,227 2008 240,864 11,136 252,000

2009-13 12,300,000 14,258,832 26,558,832 Therafter 397,772    7,537         405,309     
2014-18 13,340,000 11,849,488 25,189,488 1,553,678$ 111,431$   1,665,109$ 
2019-23 17,185,000 8,551,252 25,736,252
2024-28 15,745,000 4,779,198 20,524,198
2029-33 10,490,000   1,318,535     11,808,535   

79,800,000$ 56,494,302$ 136,294,302$

Year Ending 
December 

31, Principal Interest Total
2004 5,760,000$   144,030$      5,904,030$    
2005 150,000 135,070 285,070
2006 150,000 125,320 275,320
2007 165,000 115,345 280,345
2008 175,000 104,125 279,125

Thereafter 1,315,000     337,750        1,652,750     
7,715,000$   961,640$      8,676,640$    

Parking Authority

Governmental Activities
Note PayableGeneral Obligation Bonds

Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
Revenue Bonds
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The debt service for capitalized leases is as follows for governmental activities: 
 

Year Ending
December 31, Principal Interest Total

2004 67,739$         5,746$         73,485$        
2005 71,421          2,064          73,485          

TOTAL 139,160$       7,810$         146,970$      

The total principle and interest equals the required minimum payments for the period shown.

The interest rate on the capital lease is 5.0%

The cost of the assets is 204,308$      

The accumulated depreciation expense through December 31, 2003 is 33,577          

The net book value of the capitalized leased vehicles is 170,731$       
 
 
Advance and Current Refunding 
 
On August 7, 2003 the City issued $ 5,025,000. in General Obligation Bonds Series A 
dated August 1, 2003 with an average interest rate (coupon) of 2.934% to advance refund 
$4,885,000. of outstanding 2001 A series bonds with an average interest rate of 5.620%. 
Total proceeds included bond discount and accrued interest was $ 5,000,406. Underwriting 
fees and other issuance cost were $ 123,247. Net proceeds of $ $ 4,875,047. were used to 
purchase United States Treasury Securities – State and Local Governments deposited in 
an 
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent.  An additional $ 504,997. from the debt service fund 
(sinking fund) and an additional $ 233,318. from the 2003 B issue were deposited in the 
irrevocable trust. Subsequent debt service payments on the refunded bond issue will be 
paid from the irrevocable trust. As a result, refunded series 2001 A is considered to be 
defeased as of the issuance date and the liability for those bonds removed from the 
financial statements in the period of defeasance. The City advance refunded these bonds 
to benefit from recent declines in interest rates and achieve an economic gain of $ 99,752. 
Comparative debt service cash flows on the old and new debt show a cash flow benefit of $ 
540,303. 
 
On August 7, 2003 the City issued $ 20,870,000. in General Obligation Bonds Series B 
dated August 1, 2003 with an average interest rate (coupon) of 4.407% to advance refund 
$17,440,000. of outstanding 2001 C series bonds with an average interest rate of 6.407%. 
Total proceeds included bond discount and accrued interest was $20,792,205. 
Underwriting fees and other issuance cost were $ 645,712. Net proceeds of $ 19,516,640. 
were used to purchase United States Treasury Securities – State and Local Governments 
deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent. An additional $ 1,700,162. from the   
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debt service fund (sinking fund) and an additional $355,629. from the sinking fund 
applicable to the2001 C bonds were deposited in the irrevocable trust. Additional proceeds 
of $233,318. were deposited in the irrevocable trust to advance refund the 2001 A bonds 
noted above. Additional proceeds of $207,611 were deposited in the irrevocable trust to 
advance refund the 1997 A bonds noted below. Additional proceeds of $174,232 were 
deposited into the 2003 sinking fund to fund the September 1, 2003 interest payments. 
Subsequent debt service payments on the refunded bond issue will be paid from the 
irrevocable trust. As a result, refunded series 2001 C is considered to be defeased as of the 
issuance date and the liability for those bonds removed from the financial statements in the 
period of defeasance. The City advance refunded these bonds to benefit from recent 
declines in interest rates and achieve an economic gain of $1,926,618. Comparative debt 
service cash flows on the old and new debt show cash flow benefit of $3,992,959. 
 
On August 7, 2003 the City issued $2,380,000. in General Obligation Bonds Series B dated 
August 1, 2003 with an average interest rate (coupon) of 3.497% to advance refund 
$2,780,000. of outstanding 1997 A series bonds with an average interest rate of 4.835%. 
Total proceeds included bond premium and accrued interest was $2,405,628. Underwriting 
fees and other issuance cost were $ 63,353. Net proceeds of $2,341,069. were used to 
purchase United States Treasury Securities – State and Local Governments deposited in 
an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent. An additional $ 273,025. from the debt service 
fund (sinking fund) and an additional $207,611. from the 2003 B noted above were 
deposited in the irrevocable trust. Subsequent debt service payments on the refunded bond 
issue will be paid from the irrevocable trust. As a result, refunded series 1997 A is 
considered to be defeased as of the issuance date and the liability for those bonds 
removed from the financial statements in the period of defeasance. The City advance 
refunded these bonds to benefit from recent declines in interest rates and achieve an 
economic gain of $ 319,984. Comparative debt service cash flows on the old and new debt 
show a cash flow benefit of $ 663,525. The 1997 A issue bonds were called on September 
8, 2003 and have been retired. 
 
The amount of defeased debt outstanding at December 31, 2003 is as follows: 
 
 2001 Series A General Obligation Bonds   $   4,615,000. 
 2001 Series C General Obligation Bonds   $ 17,395,000. 
 
Bond Closing Cost were incurred for the Series of 2003 in the amount of $ 2,186,504. as 
follows: 
 

Gross Bond Insurance Premium     $ 1,272,722. 
Total Underwriter’s Discount           614,550. 
Financial Advisor             106,667. 
Bond Counsel              100,000. 
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Underwriters Counsel              50,000. 
Trustee & Counsel Fees                6,000. 
Rating Agency Fees               18,000. 
POS Official Statement              10,000. 
Verification Agent                 6,000. 
Miscellaneous                 2,565. 

 
 
Note 8  Risk Management 
 
 The City's risk management activities are reported with governmental activities and 
recorded in the Workman's Compensation Internal Service Fund.  The purpose of this fund 
is to administer a Self-Insured Retention Program (SIR).  Claims in excess of SIR limit of 
$350,000 are covered through third party insurance policies.  Payments of actual claim 
costs are made by a third party administrator and are billed to the City and reimbursed by 
the General Fund.  The claims costs are reflected as revenues in the Internal Service Fund. 
 
 The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions, injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 
 
 The City retains the risk up to various levels depending on the type of risk.  Excess 
loss coverage is purchased for coverage on claims exceeding the retention level. 
 
 At December 31, 2003, the City's self -insured retention limits are as follows; 
 
           Self-Insurance Excess Coverage 
          Retention (SIR)          Policy 
  Type of Coverage   (All Claims Up To) (From SIR Up To)
 
 General liability       $  50,000    $     950,000 
 Law enforcement liability      $  50,000    $     950,000 
 Public officials liability      $  50,000    $     950,000 
 Property        $  50,000    $15,000,000 
 Automobile Liability       $  50,000    $     950,000 
 Excess worker’s compensation     $350,000    $  Unlimited 
 Boiler and machinery      $  50,000    $15,000,000 
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 Accrued Worker’s Compensation Claims: 
 
 The Accrued Worker’s Compensation Claim loss reserve of $18,335,089 at 
December 31, 2003 was determined by an actuary and represents the discounted present 
value of expected losses using a 5.00% interest factor.  The actuarial value was 
determined as of August 31, 2003 and in prior years the actuarial valuation was determined 
as of December, 31.  The amount of Worker’s Compensation Claims operating expense for 
the Internal Service Fund for the year ended December 31, 2003 is calculated as follows: 
  
 Claims and Costs Paid   $3,609,316 
 Increase in Actuarial 
   Discounted Loss Reserve     5,716,411 
 Buyout Settlement Payments       280,500 
 Worker’s Compensation Claims  $9,606,227 
 
 
Note 9  Interfund Transfers 
 
 Interfund transfers during the year ended December 31, 2003 were as follows: 
 
         Operating     Operating 
         Transfers in   Transfers Out 
 

General Fund $  1,680,776 $   4,177,679 
Special Revenue Fund: 

Liquid Fuels                   0       1,416,259 
Special City        253,297          279,365 

Debt Service Fund     2,847,565                      0 
Internal Service Fund     1,248,086                      0 
Recreation Fund           20,251                      0 
Pension Fund                    0             28,954 
Capital Projects     1,237,928      1,385,646 
       
           TOTAL $  7,287,903 $   7,287,903 
 

 
Note 10 Pension Plans/Other Postemployment Benefits 
 
 Defined Benefit Plans:  The City sponsors and administers three single employer 
defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all full-time employees.  These plans 
are the Police, Fireman, and Nonuniformed pension plans (the “Plans”). Pennsylvania Act  
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205 and the City’s Home Rule Charter assign the authority to establish and amend benefit 
provisions to the Pension Fund Board as authorize by City Council.  The Plans have been 
designated as severely distressed under Pennsylvania Act 205 
 
 The Police pension plan provides for normal retirement with 25 years of credited 
service with a retirement age of 55 years.  The Fireman’s pension plan provides for normal 
retirement at age 60 with 25 years of credited service.  The Nonuniformed pension plan 
provides for normal retirement at age 55 with 20 years of credited service including 
continuous service of 15 years.  Members are 100% vested when eligible. 
 
 Information regarding the plans can be obtained from the City.  The plans do not 
issue separate financial statements but are included in the City’s fund financial statements 
as a fiduciary fund type – Pension Trust Funds. 
 
 Police are required to contribute 4% of covered payroll.  Firemen are required to 
contribute 4% of covered payroll.  Nonuniformed nonunion employees are required to 
contribute 3% of covered payroll but not more than $22 per month if hired after July 1, 
1987.  Nonuniformed union employees shall contribute $6 per month if hired after July 1, 
1987 and $24 per month if hired before July 1, 1987. 
 
 Pennsylvania Act 205 of 1984, the Municipal Pension Plan Funding Standard and 
Recovery Act of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (as amended) (Act 205) requires that 
annual contributions be based upon the Minimum Municipal Obligation (MMO), which is 
based on the Plans’ biennial actuarial valuation.  According to Act 205, actuarial valuations 
may be made biennially and the most recent valuation for all of the City’s plans was 
completed as of January 1, 2003.  The MMO includes the normal cost, estimated 
administrative expenses and an amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability, less 
estimated member contributions, and a credit equal to 10 percent of the excess (if any) of 
the actuarial value of assets over the actuarial accrued liability.  The Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania provides an allocation of funds which must be used for pension funding.  Any 
financial requirements established by the MMO which exceeds Commonwealth and 
member contributions must be funded by the City. 
 

Contributions, based on the MMO, in 2003 consisted of the following: 
 
         NON- 

  POLICE      FIREMEN    UNIFORMED        TOTAL  
 

City/Commonwealth  $345,504 $2,801,487 $    120,229    $ 3,267,220 
Employees     213,796      211,383         67,349          492,528 
 Total   $559,300 $3,012,870 $    187,578    $ 3,759,748 
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 A summary of the change in the net pension obligation as of January 1, 2003, 2002, and 
2001 is presented below: 

 
January 1, 2003 

 
         Non- 
        Police            Firemen       Uniformed             Total  

 
Annual required contribution    $    824,602 $   788,789 $   140,983     $ 1,754,374 
Interest on pension benefit 
  obligation 1,113,188   3,250,691      125,461         4,489,340 
Adjustment to annual required 
  contribution           853,473    1,039,706         14,778         1,907,957 
Annual pension costs   $  2,791,263          $  5,079,186 $    281,222     $  8,151,671 
Contributions made        (1,380,194)    (4,315,202) (242,085)        (5,937,481) 
Net actuarial loss on plan assets  10,777,467     8,192,385   2,190,365       21,160,217 
Net increase in pension benefit 
  obligation  $12,188,536 $  8,956,369  $  2,229,502    $ 23,374,407 
Pension benefit obligation, 
  beginning    13,914,845   40,633,641 1,568,268      56,116,754 
Pension benefit obligation, 
  ending  $26,103,381  $49,590,010 ,  797,770    $79,491,161 

 
 

January 1, 2002 
 

         Non- 
        Police            Firemen       Uniformed             Total  

 
Annual required contribution $      785,948 $      839,678 $    127,116 $  1,752,742 
Interest on pension benefit 
  obligation      1,066,190      3,205,551   74,969     4,346,710 
Adjustment to annual required 
  contribution            (6,973)         146,239   (11,065) 128,201 
Annual pension costs $   1,845,165 $   4,191,468 $   191,020 $  6,227,653 
Contributions made        (454,768) (3,476,808)        (81,273)  (4,012,849) 
Net actuarial (gain)/loss on 
  plan assets       (802,924)        (150,408)        521,409 (431,923) 
 
Net increase in pension benefit 
  obligation $     587,473 $      564,252 $     631,156     $1,782,881 
Pension benefit obligation, 
  beginning   13,327,372    40,069,389        937,112 54,333,873 
Pension benefit obligation, 
  ending $13,914,845 $ 40,633,641 $  1,568,268 $56,116,754 
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January 1, 2001 
 

         Non- 
        Police            Firemen       Uniformed             Total  

 
Annual required contribution $      801,760 $      850,370 $      107,514    $  1,759,644 
Interest on pension benefit 
  obligation         969,243      3,404,408           46,965        4,420,616 
Adjustment to annual required 
  contribution      1,989,876         597,016          262,939        2,849,831 
Annual pension costs $   3,760,879 $   4,851,794 $      417,418    $  9,030,091 
Contributions made     (2,411,148) (4,181,327) (302,031)  (6,894,506) 
Increase for plan amendment                    0                    0          127,258 127,258 
Net actuarial gain on plan assets      (137,894)     (3,156,173)         107,401       (3,186,666) 
Net increase (decrease) in  
   pension benefit obligation $  1,211,837 $  (2,485,706) $     350,046    $    (923,823) 
Pension benefit obligation, 
  beginning   12,115,535    42,555,095        587,066      55,257,696 
Pension benefit obligation, 
  ending $13,327,372 $ 40,069,389 $     937,112    $54,333,873 
 

 
 The pension benefit obligations were determined as part of an actuarial valuation at 
January 1, 2003.  The actuarial cost method used is the Entry Age Normal Cost Valuation 
Method.  Significant assumptions used include a rate of return on investment of present and future 
assets of 8% per year, projected salary increases of 5% per year and no post-retirement benefit 
increases.  Plan assets are valued using a four year smoothing method described in Internal 
Revenue Service Procedure 2000-40, Approval 15.  The unfunded actuarial liability is being 
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis over a period of 
approximately 15 year. 
 

January 1, 2003 
 

         Non- 
        Police            Firemen       Uniformed             Total  

 
Actuarial accrued liability $61,062,272 $75,535,426 $  8,371,444 $ 144,969,142 
Actuarial value of assets   34,958,891   25,945,416     4,573,674 65,477,981 
Pension benefit obligation $26,103,381 $49,590,010 $  3,797,770 $   79,491,161 
 
Funded ratio       57%       34%        55%            45% 
 
Covered payroll $  5,578,090 $  4,833,264 $  5,296,284   $  15,707,638 
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         Non- 
        Police            Firemen       Uniformed             Total 

 
Pension benefit obligation 
  to covered payroll       468%     1026%        72%         506% 
 

January 1, 2002 
 

         Non- 
        Police            Firemen       Uniformed             Total 

 
Actuarial accrued liability $54,850,759 $69,802,104 $  7,077,504    $ 131,730,367 
Actuarial value of assets   40,935,914   29,168,463     5,509,236         75,613,613
Pension benefit obligation $13,914,845 $40,633,641 $  1,568,268    $   56,116,754 
 
Funded ratio         75%       42%        78%            57% 
 
Covered payroll  $  6,814,392 $5,904,732 $  5,781,576    $  18,500,700 
 
Pension benefit obligation 
  to covered payroll       204%     688%        27%         303% 
 
 

January 1, 2001 
 

         Non- 
        Police            Firemen       Uniformed             Total 

 
Actuarial accrued liability $54,120,301 $68,167,798 $  6,504,126     $128,792,225 
Actuarial value of assets   40,792,929   28,098,409     5,567,014         74,458,352
Pension benefit obligation $13,327,372 $40,069,389 $     937,112     $  54,333,873 
 
Funded ratio         75%       41%        86%            58% 
 
Covered payroll  $  6,012,396 $5,955,684 $  5,834,856        17,802,936 
 
Pension benefit obligation 
  to covered payroll       222%     673%        16%          305% 
 
 
 Historical trend information for the Plans is presented below: 
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 Three-Year Trend Information for the City of Scranton Pension Plans
 
     Police Pension Fund
 
 Annual Pension Percentage of APC    Net Pension 
 Cost (APC) Contributed    Obligation 
 
01/01/01 $3,760,879    64.1%   $13,327,372 
01/01/02 $1,845,165    24.6%   $13,914,845 
01/01/03 $2,791,263    49.4%   $26,103,381 
 
     Firemen Pension Fund
 
 Annual Pension Percentage of APC    Net Pension 
 Cost (APC) Contributed    Obligation 
 
01/01/01 $4,851,794    86.2%   $40,069,389 
01/01/02 $4,191,468    82.9%   $40,633,641 
01/01/03 $5,079,186    85.0%   $49,590,010 
 
     Non-Uniformed Pension Fund
 
 Annual Pension Percentage of APC    Net Pension 
 Cost (APC) Contributed    Obligation 
 
01/01/01 $    417,418    72.4%   $     937,112 
01/01/02 $    191,020    42.5%   $  1,568,268 
01/01/03 $    281,222    86.1%   $  3,797,770 
 
 Defined Contribution Plan:  The City contributes to a union sponsored, multi-
employer plan for certain of its employees.  The Plan is not administered by the City and 
contributions are determined in accordance with labor contracts.  Pension expense was 
$165,282. in 2003. 
 
 The Parking Authority sponsors a defined contribution pension plan covering all 
eligible employees.  Pension expense was $24,328 for the year ended December 31, 2003. 
 
 Other Postemployment Benefits:  Under the terms of its collective bargaining 
agreements with its police, firemen, clerical, and public works employees, the City is 
required to provide health insurance to retiring employees who meet the criteria specified in 
each contract. 
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 Under the police, firemen, and clerical contracts, the City is responsible for providing 
health insurance to retirees and spouses for the remainder of their lives if the employee 
was hired or retired prior to December 31, 1993.  Employees hired after December 31, 
1993 are not eligible for these benefits.  The City’s contribution for retiree health insurance 
is equal to the cost in effect in 1993 plus 75% of any increase above that cost.  The retiree 
pays the other 25%. 
 
 Under the public works contract, the City will provide health insurance to retirees and 
spouses only from age 62 to 65.  The City’s contribution is equal to the cost in effect in 
1994 plus 75% of any increase above that costs.  The retiree pays the other 25%. 
 
 The City uses the cash basis to account for these expenditures.  The City has not 
determined the amount of such expenditures for 2003 nor the number of participants 
eligible for these benefits. 
 
 
Note 11 Credit Risk and Market Risk 
 
 The City uses its authority to levy certain general purpose taxes.  Major taxing 
revenue sources include real estate, earned income, mercantile, and business privilege 
taxes.  These taxes account for approximately 93% of the total taxes collected by the City 
in 2003.  Although the City has a diversified taxing base, its citizens’ ability to honor their 
taxing obligations is substantially dependent upon the general economic condition of the 
region. 
 
 The market value of the City’s investments are subject to fluctuations in the 
prevailing market prices of those investments. 
 
 
Note 12 Related Party Transactions 
 
 The City paid approximately $589,000 to the Single Tax Office to subsidize certain 
operating costs of this entity.  The Single Tax Office collected approximately $31,100,000 of 
tax revenues on behalf of the City in 2003. 
 
 
Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies 
 

Litigation:  Currently, there are various claims and suits pending against the City, 
the more significant of which are summarized below: 
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 Various lawsuits have been instituted against the City resulting mainly from injuries 
sustained in accidents on City properties.  Legal counsel cannot estimate the probability 
of successful outcome and the amount of the potential liability from these matters at this 
time.  However, the City has affirmed that it has adequate insurance to cover any possible 
claim or judgment. 
 

Collective Bargaining Agreements:  Substantially all of the City’s nonmanagement 
employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements between the City and 
various unions.  The Department of Public Works agreement has expired at the end of 
2001, and continues to be negotiated.  The Police, Fire and Non-uniform agreements 
expired at the end of 2002 and continues to be negotiated. 
 
 Fund Deficit Self-Insurance Fund Settlement Agreement:  On December 18, 2001, 
the City entered into a Settlement Agreement and Release with the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry, Bureau of Worker’s Compensation 
(Bureau) in order to maintain its ability to self-insure.  
 
 The settlement requires the City to correct various program deficiencies and to 
provide for unfunded outstanding claims in various annual increments beginning in 2003 
through 2012 and to keep current on annual costs for claims, administration, and 
operating expenses.  During the year 2003, the City made operating transfers from the 
General Fund to the Internal Service Fund in the amount of $1,248,086 and funded the 
Internal Service Fund with $13,000,000 from 2003 debt issuance. 
 

Pension Management Termination Fee:  In 2000, the City and Provident Mutual 
Life Insurance Company (Provident) entered into an exclusive agreement for Provident to 
manage the assets of the City’s three pension plans.  The agreement required a payment 
by Provident of a one-time concession fee of $7.5 million which has been recognized by 
the City as revenue in the 2000 general purpose financial statements.  However, if 
Provident is terminated at any time during the 15 year term of the agreement, the City is 
liable for a withdrawal penalty which is calculated on a sliding scale based on the value of 
the pension assets under management.  In no event will this withdrawal penalty be less 
than the accrued value of the original concession fee less the asset charges applied 
under the agreement..  In 2003, the City terminated the Agreement and paid Provident 
$7,327,626 from the 2003 debt issuance. 
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CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Note 14 Distressed Municipality Status 
 
 In 1992, the Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development 
(DCED) declared the City a distressed municipality under the Financially Distressed 
Municipalities Act (Act).  DCED then appointed the Pennsylvania Economy League as 
coordinator to administer a recovery plan for the City pursuant to this Act.  While the City 
has improved its financial situation since this designation, the City still remains a 
distressed municipality pursuant to the Act. 
 
 
Note 15 Current Real Estate Taxes 
 
Current real estate taxes collected at December 31, 2003 
 

Land Building Total
Total Assessed Value 95,896,302 283,578,822 379,475,124

Millage Rates 0.082122 0.017860

Total Original Taxes Levied 7,875,196 5,064,718 12,939,914$ 

Add: Additions 154,229

Less: Abatements (50,293)        

Real Estate Taxes To be Collected At Face 13,043,850$ 

Add: Penalties Collected 77,384         

Total Before Deductions 13,121,234$ 

Less: Discounts Taken (190,833)

Less: Home Vouchers (253,856)

Less: Delinquent Taxes Returned (1,906,124)    

TOTAL REAL ESTATE TAXES COLLECTED 10,770,421$  
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VARIANCE WITH
ACTUAL FINAL BUDGET
GAAP POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL BASIS (NEGATIVE)
Revenues

Taxes 35,084,246$ 35,084,246$ 35,279,532$ 195,286$          
Intergovernmenta l 2,862,852  2,862,852  3,213,479   350,627            
Departmenta l Earnings 1,552,127  1,552,127  1,858,669   306,542            
Refuse Disposa l Fees 4,703,151  4,703,151  4,727,136   23,985              
Lic enses and  Permits 1,063,665  1,063,665  1,156,079   92,414              
Cab le Television Franc hise 

Revenue 640,000     640,000     723,966      83,966              
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 200,000     200,000     238,957      38,957              
Interest Inc ome 142,000     142,000     122,732      (19,268)             
Sewer Authority Conc ession

Fees 500,000     500,000     500,000      0
User Fees 25,000       25,000       34,044         9,044                
Other Revenues 262,020     262,020     890,033      628,013            
Donations 0                0                155,000      155,000            
Rents and  Conc essions 3,000         3,000         267              (2,733)               

Tota l Revenues 47,038,061$ 47,038,061$ 48,899,894$ 1,861,833$       

Expend itures
Genera l Government 9,591,773$ 8,143,603$ 11,226,724$ (3,083,121)$      
Pub lic  Sa fety 24,151,764 24,482,436 24,941,667 (459,231)           
Pub lic  Works 7,917,508  8,403,291  8,303,742   99,549              
Community Development 434,127     416,156     413,666      2,490                
Culture and  Rec rea tion 889,098     1,055,086  1,052,286   2,800                

Tota l Expend itures 42,984,270$ 42,500,572$ 45,938,085$ (3,437,513)$      

Exc ess of Revenues Over
      Expend itures 4,053,791$ 4,537,489$ 2,961,809$  (1,575,680)$      

BUDGETED AMOUNTS

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
GENERAL FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."  
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VARIANCE WITH
ACTUAL FINAL BUDGET
GAAP POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL BASIS (NEGATIVE)

Other Financ ing Sourc es (Uses)
Bond  Proc eeds 0$               0$               31,625,000$ 31,625,000$     
Proc eeds from Tax Antic ipa tion

Notes 7,700,000  7,700,000  7,699,914   (86)                    
Disposition of Assets Transfered  to S 0                0                1,150,000   1,150,000         
Opera ting Transfers In 1,583,485  1,583,485  1,680,776   97,291              
Opera ting Transfers Out (5,394,276) (5,994,410) (4,177,679)  1,816,731         
Transfer of Asset to SRA 0                0                (1,150,000)  (1,150,000)        
Bond  Cost 0                0                (1,375,000)  (1,375,000)        
Workmen Comp Fund ing 0                0                (13,000,000) (13,000,000)      
Pension Trust Fund ing 0                0                (9,922,374)  (9,922,374)        
Pension Trust Management Fee Buy 0                0                (7,327,626)  (7,327,626)        
Payments of Tax Antic ipa tion

Notes (7,943,000) (7,826,564) (7,826,564)  0                       

Net Other Financ ing Sourc es (Uses) (4,053,791)$ (4,537,489)$ (2,623,553)$ 1,913,936$       

Exc ess of Revenues and  Other 
Financ ing Sourc es Over
Expend itures and  Other 
Financ ing Uses (4,053,791)$ (4,537,489)$ (2,623,553)$ 1,913,936$       

Fund  Ba lanc e, Beginning of Year 3,315,220  3,315,220  3,315,220   0                       

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR (738,571)$   (1,222,269)$ 691,667$     1,913,936$       

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."

BUDGETED AMOUNTS

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
GENERAL FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
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TOTAL
NON-MAJOR

SPECIAL LIQUID REDEVELOPMENT DEBT GOVERNMENTAL
CITIES FUELS AUTHORITY SERVICE FUNDS

ASSETS

Cash and  Cash Equiva lents 4,555,638$   4,236$         329,824$         2,403,432$    7,293,130$         
Ac c ounts Rec eivab le, Net 0                  0                187,175          0                    187,175             
Loans Rec eivab le 0                  0                900,000          0                    900,000             
Other Rec eivab les, Net 839,087        0                0                    0                    839,087             
Property Held  for Resa le 0                  0                1,257,551       0                    1,257,551          

TOTAL ASSETS 5,394,725$   4,236$         2,674,550$      2,403,432$    10,476,943$       

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
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TOTAL
NON-MAJOR

SPECIAL LIQUID REDEVELOPMENT DEBT GOVERNMENTAL
CITIES FUELS AUTHORITY SERVICE FUNDS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

Ac c ounts Payab le 261,377$      0$               853,858$         0$                  1,115,235$         
Ac c rued  Liab ilities 0                  0                12,600            0                    12,600               
Due to Other Funds 1,367,966     0                240,542          0                    1,608,508          
Deferred  Revenues 3,612,173     0                900,000          0                    4,512,173          

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,241,516$   0$               2,007,000$      0$                  7,248,516$         

FUND BALANCES

Debt Servic e 0$                0$               0$                   2,403,432      2,403,432$         
Unreserved  - Undesignated 153,209        4,236          667,550          0                    824,995             

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 153,209$      4,236$         667,550$         2,403,432$    3,228,427$         

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES 5,394,725$   4,236$         2,674,550$      2,403,432$    10,476,943$       

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
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TOTAL
NON-MAJOR

SPECIAL LIQUID REDEVELOPMENT DEBT GOVERNMENTAL
CITIES FUELS AUTHORITY SERVICE FUNDS

Revenues:
Intergovernmenta l 6,130,780$   1,182,046$  3,400,229$    0$                 10,713,055$        
Departmenta l Earnings 75,381         0                0                   0                   75,381               
Interest Inc ome 16,323         6,517          1,753            60,695          85,288               
Other Revenues 954,735       0                0                   0                   954,735             
Rents and  Conc essions 0                 0                6,950            0                   6,950                 

Tota l Revenues 7,177,219$   1,188,563$  3,408,932$    60,695$        11,835,409$        

Expend itures:
Current:

Genera l Government 765,101$     0$               0$                  9,148$          774,249$             
Pub lic  Works 1,960,170     0                0                   0                   1,960,170           
Hea lth and  Welfa re 2,439,638     0                0                   0                   2,439,638           
Community Development 1,970,690     0                2,691,683     0                   4,662,373           
Other Expend itures 14,335         0                0                   0                   14,335               

Deb t Servic e
Debt Servic e-Princ ipa l 0                 0                810,979        575,000        1,385,979           
Deb t Servic e-Interest 0                 0                88,769          1,228,034     1,316,803           

Cap ita l Outlay 0                 0                525,025        0                   525,025             

Tota l Expend itures 7,149,934$   0$               4,116,456$    1,812,182$   13,078,572$        

Exc ess (Defic ienc y) of Revenues 
   Over Expend itures 27,285$       1,188,563$  (707,524)$      (1,751,487)$  (1,243,163)$        
 
Other Financ ing Sourc es (Uses):

Bond  Proc eeds Refund ing Bonds 0$               0$               0$                  28,275,000$ 28,275,000$        
Proc eeds From Long Term Debt 0                 0                636               0                   636                    
Opera ting Transfers In 253,297       0                0                   2,847,565     3,100,862           
Opera ting Transfers Out (279,365)      (1,416,259) 0                   0                   (1,695,624)         
Bond  Issuanc e Costs 0                 0                0                   (927,083)       (927,083)            
Payment to Refund  bond  esc row agent 0                 0                0                   (29,305,026)  (29,305,026)       

Net Other Financ ing Sourc es (Uses) (26,068)$     (1,416,259)$ 636$              890,456$      (551,235)$           

Exc ess (Defic ienc y) of Revenues and  Other
Financ ing Sourc es Over Expend itures and  
and  Other Financ ing Uses 1,217$         (227,696)$   (706,888)$      (861,031)$     (1,794,398)$        

Fund  Ba lanc es, Beginning of Year 151,992        231,932        1,374,438       3,264,463     5,022,825             

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR 153,209$     4,236$         667,550$       2,403,432$   3,228,427$          

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Add itions:
Contributions

Employee 492,528$            
Employer 552,268              
Commonwea lth Sta te Aid 2,714,952           
Tota l Contributions 3,759,748$ 

Investment Inc ome:
Investment Return 11,795,275$       
Dividend  Inc ome 218                     
Tota l Investment Inc ome 11,795,493

Other Inc ome:
Misc ellaneous Rec eip ts 7,519$                
Buy-Bac ks 13,766                
Pension Trust Add 'l Fund ing 9,922,374           
Tota l Other Inc ome 9,943,659  

TOTAL ADDITIONS 25,498,900$  

DEDUCTIONS
Benefit Payments 9,589,870$ 
Administra tive Expenses 69,919       
Transfer To Genera l Fund 28,954       
Death Benefit Payments 1,000         
Refund  Of Members' Contributions 21,288       

Tota l Deduc tions 9,711,031     

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 15,787,869$  

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS:

Beginning of Year 54,605,464   

END OF YEAR 70,393,333$  

PENSION TRUST FUND

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."  
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VARIANCE WITH
ACTUAL FINAL BUDGET
GAAP POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL BASIS (NEGATIVE)
Revenues

Taxes
Ac t 511:

Wage 18,731,735$ 18,731,735$ 18,348,593$ (383,142)$         
Rea l Esta te Transfer 1,800,000    1,800,000    2,234,592     434,592           
Merc antile 994,044      994,044      822,791       (171,253)          
Business Privilege 568,674      568,674      642,815       74,141             
Oc c upationa l Privilege 330,007      330,007      339,964       9,957               
Delinquent Merc antile 109,325      109,325      59,468         (49,857)            
Delinquent Business Privilege 0                 0                 68,703         68,703             

Tota l Ac t 511 22,533,785$ 22,533,785$ 22,516,926$ (16,859)$           

Current Rea l Esta te 10,523,607$ 10,523,607$ 10,770,421$ 246,814$          
Delinquent Rea l Esta te 1,861,854    1,861,854    1,821,940     (39,914)            
Pub lic  Utility 25,000        25,000        124,490       99,490             
Pena lties & Interest 140,000      140,000      45,755         (94,245)            

Tota l Taxes 35,084,246$ 35,084,246$ 35,279,532$ 195,286$          

Intergovernmenta l
Supp lementa l Sta te Assisted  Pension 2,200,000$   2,200,000$   2,714,952$    514,952$          
Attorney Genera l, Drug Task Forc e 51,000        51,000        0                  (51,000)            
Cops Ahead  Program 486,852      486,852      270,325       (216,527)          
Ac t 101 125,000      125,000      228,202       103,202           

Tota l Intergovernmenta l 2,862,852$   2,862,852$   3,213,479$    350,627$          

Departmenta l Earnings
Parking Meters 535,005$      535,005$      556,228$       21,223$            
Fines and  Forfeits 737,657      737,657      798,501       60,844             
Pave Cuts 174,465      174,465      401,347       226,882           
Ala rm Fees 55,000        55,000        76,230         21,230             
Resc ue Fees 50,000        50,000        16,544         (33,456)            
Zoning 0                 0                 9,819           9,819               

Tota l Departmenta l Earnings 1,552,127$   1,552,127$   1,858,669$    306,542$          

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

BUDGETED AMOUNTS

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."  

73



VARIANCE WITH
ACTUAL FINAL BUDGET
GAAP POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL BASIS (NEGATIVE)

Other Revenues
Refuse Disposa l Fees 4,703,151$   4,703,151$   4,727,136$    23,985$            
Lic enses and  Permits 1,063,665    1,063,665    1,156,079     92,414             
Cab le Television Franc hise Revenue 640,000      640,000      723,966       83,966             
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 200,000      200,000      238,957       38,957             
Interest Inc ome 142,000      142,000      122,732       (19,268)            
Sewer Authority Conc ession Fees 500,000      500,000      500,000       0
User Fees 25,000        25,000        34,044         9,044               
Other Revenues 262,020      262,020      890,033       628,013           
Dona tions 0 0 155,000       155,000           
Rents and  Conc essions 3,000          3,000          267              (2,733)              

Tota l Other Revenues 7,538,836$   7,538,836$   8,548,214$    1,009,378$       

Tota l Revenues 47,038,061$ 47,038,061$ 48,899,894$  1,861,833$       

Other Financ ing Sourc es
Proc eeds from Tax Antic ipa tion Notes 7,700,000$   7,700,000$   7,699,914$    (86)$                  
Bond  Proc eeds 0                 0                 31,625,000   31,625,000      
Disposition of Assets Transfered  to SRA 0                 0                 1,150,000     1,150,000        
Opera ting Transfers in from:

Liquid  Fuels Fund 1,183,485    1,183,485    1,416,259     232,774           
Interna l Servic e Fund 0                 0                 0                  0                      
Other Funds 400,000      400,000      264,517       (135,483)          

Tota l Other Financ ing Sourc es 9,283,485$   9,283,485$   42,155,690$  32,872,205$     

Tota l Revenues and  Other 
Financ ing Sourc es 56,321,546$ 56,321,546$ 91,055,584$  34,734,038$     

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETED AMOUNTS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
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VARIANCE WITH
ACTUAL FINAL BUDGET
GAAP POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL BASIS (NEGATIVE)
Expend itures

Genera l Government
Sa la ries and  Wages 2,036,255$   1,848,177$   1,930,565$   (82,388)$           
Employee Benefits 2,761,967     2,647,239    2,465,596    181,643             
Workers' Compensa tion Cla ims 0                  105,438      3,535,576    (3,430,138)         
Genera l Insuranc e 850,000       1,262,848    1,237,104    25,744              
Offic e Supp lies and  Expense 254,099       248,427      226,372      22,055              
Professiona l Fees 695,466       640,727      529,415      111,312             
Telephone 188,000       142,669      141,055      1,614                
Equipment 63,700         52,087        56,763        (4,676)               
Travel 6,750           5,774          3,828          1,946                
Other 713,381       196,443      186,245      10,198              
Boards and  Commissions 150,573       148,956      112,818      36,138              
Utilities 661,432       665,477      658,758      6,719                
Grants and  Contributions 10,150         10,150        18,150        (8,000)               
Court Awards & Settlements 1,200,000     166,018      121,306      44,712              
Surety Bonds 0                  3,173          3,173          0                       

Tota l Genera l Government 9,591,773$   8,143,603$   11,226,724$ (3,083,121)$       

Pub lic  Sa fety
Sa la ries and  Wages 14,377,997$ 13,600,612$ 13,327,853$ 272,759$           
Employee Benefits 8,994,861     10,109,882  10,898,499  (788,617)            
Supp lies 96,500         114,231      127,183      (12,952)             
Equipment 177,000       97,387        115,978      (18,591)             
Parking  Authority Tic ket Issuers 312,269       312,269      289,502      22,767              
Tra ining 102,000       208,873      166,522      42,351              
Travel 15,000         10,904        10,904        0                       
Professiona l Fees 76,137         28,278        5,226          23,052              

Tota l Pub lic  Sa fety 24,151,764$ 24,482,436$ 24,941,667$ (459,231)$          

Pub lic  Works
Sa la ries and  Wages 3,375,659$   3,491,905$   3,339,944$   151,961$           
Employee Benefits 417,838       502,180      498,596      3,584                
Supp lies 619,400       828,086      445,457      382,629             
Professiona l Fees 80,930         46,667        17,633        29,034              
Equipment 473,681       529,013      980,366      (451,353)            
Elec tric 245,000       259,956      256,016      3,940                
Land fill Fees 1,475,000     1,606,767    1,627,499    (20,732)             
Sa lt 250,000       218,777      218,291      486                   
Street Lighting 980,000       919,940      919,940      0                       

Tota l Pub lic  Works 7,917,508$   8,403,291$   8,303,742$   99,549$            

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

BUDGETED AMOUNTS

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."  
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VARIANCE WITH
ACTUAL FINAL BUDGET
GAAP POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL BASIS (NEGATIVE)
Community Development

Sa la ries and  Wages 400,777$      389,260$      388,668$      592$                 
Emp loyee Benefits 12,000         12,000        10,368        1,632                
Supp lies 21,350         14,896        14,630        266                   

Tota l Community 
              Development 434,127$      416,156$      413,666$      2,490$              

Culture and  Rec rea tion
Sa la ries and  Wages 472,647$      646,552$      646,552$      0$                     
Emp loyee Benefits 1,760           1,760          1,760          0                       
Supp lies 336,339       366,604      363,804      2,800                
Programs 78,352         40,170        40,170        0                       

Tota l Culture and  Rec rea tion 889,098$      1,055,086$   1,052,286$   2,800$              

Tota l Expend itures 42,984,270$  42,500,572$ 45,938,085$ (3,437,513)$       

Other Financ ing Uses
Payments of Tax Antic ipa tion Notes 7,943,000$   7,826,564$   7,826,564$   0$                     
Bond  Cost 0                  0                 1,375,000    (1,375,000)         
Workmen Comp Bond  Proc eeds 0                  0                 13,000,000  (13,000,000)       
Pension Trust Fund ing 0                  0                 9,922,374    (9,922,374)         
Pension Buyout 0                  0                 7,327,626    (7,327,626)         
Transfer of Asset to SRA 0                  0                 1,150,000    (1,150,000)         
Opera ting Transfers Out to :

Other Funds 3,511,373     4,610,612    1,277,680    3,332,932          
Bond  Cap ita l Budget 0                  491,975      491,975      0                       
Deb t Servic e Fund 1,882,903     891,823      2,408,024    (1,516,201)         

Tota l Other Financ ing Uses 13,337,276$  13,820,974$ 44,779,243$ (30,958,269)$     

Tota l Expend itures and  Other
Financ ing Uses 56,321,546$  56,321,546$ 90,717,328$ (34,395,782)$     

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

BUDGETED AMOUNTS
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PASS
FEDERAL THROUGH

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ PASS THROUGH GRANTOR CFDA ENTITY FEDERAL
PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER IDENTIFYING NUMBER EXPENDITURES

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT:
   Community Development Bloc k Grants/ Entitlement Grants 14.218 6,966,033$       
   Emergenc y Shelter Grants Program 14.231 182,950           
   Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 501,612           

      Tota l U.S. Department of Housing and  Urban Development  $       7,650,595 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:
   COPS 16.710 $          267,287 
   Bulletp roof Vest Program 16.607 27,455             

      Tota l U.S. Department of Justic e 294,742$          

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY
   Grea t Grant Program 21.053 9,387$              

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
   Passed  through the Pennsylvania  Department of Transporta tion
      Highway Planning  and  Construc tion 20.205 723,689$          

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
   Passed  through the Pennsylvania  Department of Hea lth
      Childhood  Lead  Poisoning  Prevention Projec ts 93.197 PALAG0025-94 92,857$            

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 8,771,270$       

Note:  The sc hedule of expend itures of Federa l Awards is p repared
           On the mod ified  ac c rua l basis of ac c ounting.

CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

"See ac c ompanying notes and  independent aud itors' report."  
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
July 24, 2004 
 
To Honorable Members of City Council 
The City of Scranton, Pennsylvania 
 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information 
of the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003, 
which collectively comprise the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated July 24, 2004. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
Compliance 
 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Scranton, 
Pennsylvania financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination 
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Scranton, 
Pennsylvania internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and 
not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we 
noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its 
operation that we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve 
matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or 
operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment, could 
adversely affect the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania ability to record, process, 
summarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in 
the financial statements. Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2003-1.  
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A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or 
more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk 
that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial 
statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by 
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our 
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily 
disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable conditions and, 
accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also 
considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe that the reportable 
condition described above is not a material weakness. We also noted other matters 
involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to 
management of the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania in a separate letter dated July 24, 
2004 
 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City 
Council, management and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

79



ROBERT ROSSI & CO. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 
ROBERT L. ROSSI, C.P.A. 299 MAIN ST. – STURGES SALVATORE A. NOLE, JR., C.P.A. 
ROBERT T. ARVONIO, C.P.A. OLYPHANT, PA  18447-2319 JOSEPH E. ROSSI, C.P.A. 
PETER D. ARVONIO, JR., C.P.A. TEL. (570) 876-2300 – FAX (570) 876-5153 SEAN J. GRASSI, C.P.A. 
ROBERT A. HANIS, C.P.A. e-mail – rossi@rrco.net RALPH R. MORRIS III, C.P.A. 
 

 
 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE 
TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 
 
July 24, 2004 
 
The Honorable Members of City Council of 
  the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania 
 
COMPLIANCE 
 

We have audited the compliance of the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania with the 
types of compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2003.  The City of Scranton, 
Pennsylvania’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  Compliance 
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of 
its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania’s 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of Scranton, 
Pennsylvania’s compliance based on our audit. 
 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, 
and Non-Profit Organizations.  Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could 
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the 
City of Scranton, Pennsylvania’s compliance with those requirements. 
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As described in item 2003-2 and 2003-3 in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned cost the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania did not comply with 
requirements regarding recordkeeping and reporting that are applicable to its Cops 
Ahead Program and did not comply with the requirements regarding indirect cost rate 
applicable to its CDBG/Entitlement Grant and Home Investment Partnership Program.  
Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the City of 
Scranton, Pennsylvania to comply with requirements applicable to those programs. 

 
In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding 

paragraph, the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania complied, in all material respects, with 
the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended December 31, 2003. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
 

The management of the City of Scranton, Pennsylvania is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Scranton, 
Pennsylvania’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and 
report on the internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. 
 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily 
disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material 
weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal 
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance 
with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would be 
material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be 
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance 
and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City 
Council, management, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
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CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYVANIA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

 

 
 
 Section I – Auditor’s Result Section 
 

(1) A qualified opinion was expressed on the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the auditee.  An unqualified opinion was expressed on the 
remaining Governmental-Activities, Business Activities, and each major fund. 

 
(2) Reportable condition was disclosed by the audit of the financial statements in 

Internal Control.  The condition is not reported as a material weakness. 
 

(3) The audit did not disclose any noncompliance which is material to the 
financial statements of the auditee. 

 
(4) No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the Major Federal Award 

Programs are reported. 
 

(5) The Auditor’s Report on compliance for Cops Ahead Program, expresses a 
qualified opinion; the report on the remaining programs are unqualified. 

 
(6) Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Section 

510(A) OMB Circular A-133 are reported in this schedule. 
 

(7) Identification of major programs is as follows: 
 

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
 
14.218  CDBG/Entitlement Grants 
14.239  Home Investment Partnerships Program 
20.205  Highway Planning and Construction 

 
(8) The dollar threshold used to distinguish Type A and Type B programs as 

described in Section 520(B) of OMB Circular A-133 was $300,000. 
 

(9) The auditee did not qualify as a low-risk auditee under Section 530 of OMB   
Circular A-133. 
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CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYVANIA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

 

 
Section II – Findings relating to the Financial Statements which are required to be reported 
in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards. 
 
2003-1 
 
Condition: There is no segregation of duties regarding the system for processing 

accounts payable. One person is responsible for matching invoices to 
purchase orders, enters invoices into the general ledger, processes the 
checks for payment, has access to the signature machine, and mails 
the checks to vendors. 

 
Effect: Because of the lack of segregation of duties the possibility of error and 

omissions to go undetected exist when one person has complete 
control over all these functions. 

 
Recommendation: Procedures should be implemented whereby one person does not 

have complete control over these functions. 
 
Section III – Findings and questioned cost for Federal Awards which shall include audit 
findings as defined in Section 510(A) of OMB Circular A – 133 
 
Department of Housing and Urban Development: 
CDBG/Entitlement Grant CFDA 14.218;  
Home Investment Partnership Program CFDA 14.239 
 
2003 Project No. B – 03 – MC – 42 – 0014 
          Project No. M – 03 – MC – 42 - 0205   
 
 
2003-2 
 
Condition: Indirect cost are those incurred for common or joint purpose benefiting 

more than one cost objective that cannot be readily assigned to the 
cost objective specifically benefited. 

 
Criteria: In order to recover indirect cost, governmental entities must prepare 

cost allocation plan (Cap) or indirect cost rate proposals (Idcrp’s).  
The Community Development Block Grant paid $ 58,000 to the City of 
Scranton for rental of the third floor offices in City Hall. The Home 
Investment Partnerships Program paid $12,000 for rental of the third 
floor offices in City Hall. The rental period was for July 1, 2002 to 
August 31, 2003. 
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CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYVANIA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

 

 
The Community Development Block Grant paid $38,667 to the City of 
Scranton for a proportional share of the City’s monthly data processing 
expense.  The Home Investment Partnership Program paid $8,000 to 
the City of Scranton for a proportional share of the City's monthly data 
processing expense. 

 
Effect: Indirect costs were charged to the programs without the preparation of 

a Cap or Idcrp. 
 
Recommendation: A Cap or Idcrp should be developed if indirect costs are to be charged 

to the grants 
 
Department of Justice: 
Universal Hiring Program CFDA 16.710 
Cops In School CFDA 16.710 
Cops in Community Prosecution CFDA 16.710 
 
 
2003-3 
 
Condition: The Police Department does not maintain adequate written accounting 

procedures needed to ensure proper control, monitoring, reporting, and 
receiving of grant funds. 

 
Criteria: Documented financial procedures should be prepared to describe all 

accounting functions and related activities to ensure adequate control 
of grant funds. 

 
Effects: Due to a change over in staff and lack of detailed procedures, the 

following deficiencies were noted: 
1.) Quarterly financial status reports are due within forty-five 

(45) days after the end of a quarter. None of the 2003 
quarterly reports were filed within forty-five (45) days after 
the quarter’s end. 

2.) To draw down money from the program requires the use of 
(personnel identification number) PIN after quarterly reports 
were filed. The new personnel was not aware of this 
requirement or where such PIN was located. As a result, the 
City did not receive any Federal reimbursement in 2003 for 
the COPS program. 

3.) The majority of COPS grants require an increasing local 
match each year and a decreasing federal share. The new 
personnel were not aware of such requirement and when 
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CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYVANIA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

 

 
 
quarterly reports were prepared the incorrect federal and 
local expenditures were reported. The City has subsequently 
revised the original filing to properly report Federal and Local 
shares. Since no money was received the City did not owe 
any funds back. 

4.) The Department's annual report and officer progress report 
is required to be filed annually within forty-five (45) days 
after year end. Such report was not filed until April 2004. 

5.) Upon completion of the grant, the grantee is required to file 
a final financial status report within ninety (90) days. One 
grant expired in August 2003 and a final completion report 
was not submitted. In May 2004 the City requested an 
extension for this grant.  

 
Recommendation: Procedures should be implemented to ensure that all necessary 

reports are filed timely and accurately.  The City has access to 
authorized funds when available and upon completion of a grant the 
final completion report is prepared and all funds have been expended 
within the allotted ninety (90) days after the grant period has ended. 
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CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA 
STATUS OF CORRECTIVE ACTION AND PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

 
 

 Findings and questioned cost for Federal Awards which shall include audit 
findings as defined in Section 510(a) of OMS Circular A-133. 
 
Finding 2002-2 
 
 The audit for the year ended December 31, 2002 noted that program income was 
not being disbursed before requesting additional cash payments. 
 
 Program income was only requested after prior cash was disbursed. 
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